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lndependent ;\uditor's Report

To the Members of Danuh llomes Privatc Limitcd

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accotnpanving financial statements of Danub Homes Private t-imitetl (*the

Company ") u'hich comprisc tl.rc Balance Sheet as at N1arch .ll. i024 and the Statement ol Pro{lt atrd
Loss tbr the year ended. including 1he statcment ol'Other Corirprehensire Iucome. lhe' Cash l,lou
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity lbr the l car then ended. and notes to the lnd AS
financial statements. including a summar)' of signilicant accounting policies and other erplanatorr
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our infonnation and according to tho explanations given to us. the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS flnancial statements give the information required bl the Cornpanics Act.
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a tme and fair vieu in conformity with the
accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Rules. 1015. as amended. and accounting principles generalll, accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 3l't 2024. its profit and other cornprelrensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equitv for the _vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit ofthe Ind AS financial statenrents in accordance r.r'ith thc Standards on ;\uditing
(SAs), as specified undcr sectton l.l31l0) ot'tlre ;\ct. Our rcsponsibilities under those Standards arc
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities lbr the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements'

section ofour report. We are indeperrdent ofthc Companv in accordance with the '('ode olEthics' issued

by the Institute ol'Chartered Accountants ol'lndia togetlrer u'ith the ethical requirements that are

relevant to our audit ofthe flnancial statements under the provisions ofthe Act and the Rules thercunder.

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance uith these requrrements and thc
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit er idenoe we have rrbtained is su1-llcient and appr,rpliatc t,,
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS tinancial slatements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our protessional .judgmenl. were ol most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements ofthe current period. 1'hese matters were addressed
in the contexl ol our audit of the slandalonc financial statenlents as a rvhole. and in lbrmins our
opinion thereon. and we do not provide a soparate opinion on these matters.

Repo(ing ol Key audit matters as per '-iA 701 is no1 applicable kr the companv as it
compan\'.

d

Branch
No.30 | 3rd Floor I Sattelite Complex I Koppikar Road I Hubli - 580020 lKarnataka llndia lTel :+91 8147056789

INDI



Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board ol Directors is responsible lbr the other inlirrnration. Jhe othcr inlbrnratiorr
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the Irrd ,,\S llnancial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statenrents does not cover the other intbrn.ration and uc d1r not
express any fbnn ofassurance conclusion thercorr.

In connection nith our audit of the Ind AS llnancial statements. our responsibilit],is to rcad the other
information and, in doing so. consider whether such othcr iutbnnation is matcrialh' inconsistent rvith
the tinancial statements. or our kuouledge oblained in thc audit or otherwise appears to be nrateriallr
misstated. lf. based on the work u,e have perfbmred. we conclude that there is a material misstatem,.-nl

of this other infbrmation. we are requircd to rcporl that lact. \l'e hale nothing kr reporl in this regartl.

Management's Responsibilitv for thc Ind .{S Financial Statements

Thc Companl''s board ol'directors is responsible for lhe matters slated in section lJ.l(s) r)1'thc
Companies Act. 2013 ("the Acl") \\ ith respect to the preparation ofthese IndAS tinancial stalcnrents thrt
give a true and fair vier.r'of the financial position. tlnancial perlbmrancc and cash llous ot thc Companr
in accordance with the accounting principles generalll accepted in lndia. including thc aecountirrE
standards prescribed under Section 133 of' the Act read with rule I of the Cornpanies tlndian
Accounting Standardsl Rules. 201 5 as amended.

This responsibility also includes rnairrtenancc ol'adequale aecounting records in accorclance rvith the
provisions of the Act fbr sal'eguarding the assets of the Companl and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other inegularities: selection and application ol appropriate accounting policies: making

iudgments and estimates that arc reasonable and prudent: and design. implementation and nraintcnancr
of adequate internal financial controls. that were operaling ef1-ectivcly fbr ensuring the accuracv and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the flnancial
statements that give a true and lair r,iew and are fiee liom nraterial nrisstatement. rvhether dtre to fraud
or enor.

ln preparing the Ind AS financial statements. nranaqement is responsible for asscssing lhe ( ompanr's
abilit)- to continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable. rratters related to going c()ncern and

using the going concern basis ofaccounting uniess n.ranagcnrent either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations. or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible Ior overseeing the Companl's financial reponing pr,rcc:s.

Auditor's Responsibililv for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statcments

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about uhether the Ind AS llnancial statenlents as a

whole are free tiom material misstatement. whether duc to fiaud or emor. and to issue an autlilor':; reporl
that includes our opinion. Reasonahle assurance is a high level of assurance hut is not a guarapter. tllat
an audit conducted in accordance rvith SAs u-ill alwal s dctoct a material misstatenrent uhen i1 erists.
Misstatemenls can arise from liaud or error and are considcred material iL individuattl or in aggregatc.
they could reasonabll bc expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis ol'
these Ind AS financial statcmenls.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. rve exercise prol'cssional iudgment and mainlain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. \I e also:

' Identify and assess the risks of matcrial misstatement of the Ind AS hnancial statements.
lvhether due to fraud or error- design and perfornr audit procedures responsive to thosc risks.
and obtain audit evidence that is sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinir,n
The risk o{'not dctecting a matcrial nrisstatement resultingl fiom fiaud is higher than for onc
resulting from error. as fiaud mav involve collusion. tbrgerl. intentional rrnrissiorrs.
misrepresentations. or the oT ,erride of intemal control.

Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in ortier to dcsign aurlr(
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under seclion l.ll( I X i ) of the AcI. u. c are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on r.vhether the Companl has adcquale intcrnal
financial controls with rel'erence to financial slatr:ments in place and the operating ell'ectiveness
of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosurcs made by' managemenl.

. Conclude on the appropriateness ofmanagement's use of the going concem basis ofaccounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtaincd. whether a material uncertaint) cxists relaled to events
or conditions that ma)'cas1 significant doubt on the Comparrl''s abilit.v to continuc as a goitrg
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertaintr exists. $e are required to drau attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclostrres

are inadequate. to modiS our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date o1'our auditor's report. I{owever, future events or conditions ma1 cause the

Companl to ceasc to eonlinuc as a tlr)ing concem.

. Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of'the Ind r\S flnancial statements.
including the disclosures. and u,hether the tnd AS financial statements represent thc underlr ing
transactions and evcnts in a manner thal achievcs lair prcsentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the flnancial statemenls that. individuallv or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonahly knou,ledgeable user of the
financial statements mal be influenced. We consider quantitatiye materialitl'and qualitative lhctors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results ofour rvork; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect ofany identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters. the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in
intemal control that we identi$'during oru audit.

We also provide those charged n'ith govemance with a statement that rve have complied uith relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicale with them all relationships and othcr
matters that ma1' reasonably' bc thought to bear on our indcpendcnce. and trherc applicahle. relatctl
safeguards.



Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
l. As required b,v-. the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2020 ("the Order"). issued by the Central

Govemment of India in lerms of sub-section (l I ) of Section 143 of the Conrpanies Act. l013. r.r e
enclose in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters specilied in paragraphs.l and 4 of'the said
Order.

2. As required by Section l4l t3) ol'the Act. wc report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the infbrmation and explanations shich Io the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary tbr the purposes of'our audit:

@) [n our opinion. proper books of'account as required by larv have been kept by the Companl so
far as appears fiom our examination of those books:

(c) The Balance Sheet. the Stalement of Profit and Loss including the Statemcnt ol ()ther

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of('hanges in Equiti dealt
with by this Report are in agreement uith the books ofaccount:

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid lnd AS financial slatements compll with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read *ith Companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rules. 201 5. as amended:

(e) On the basis of the rvritten representations received liom the directors as on March I l. :024
taken on record bl the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on March 3 1 .

2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f.) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting olthe
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating efl'ectivencss
of such controls. ref'er to our separate Iteport in "Anncrure A" to this report: Our repo(
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
company's internal financial controls over tlnancial reporting.

(g) According to the inlbmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examrnation
of the records ol the Company. managerial remuneration has not been paid , pror.ided.
Accordingly. reporting under section I 97( I 6 ) of the Act is not applicablc: and

(r) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors'Report in accordancc with
Rule l1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014. in our opinion and to rhe hesr o1'

our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Compan.v has disclosed pending litigations and the impact on its flnancial position -
refer note 35 to the Standalone F'inancial Statements.

I The company did not have any' long-term contracts including derivative contracts fbr
which there were anv materia[ foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transl'erred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund b.v-, the Company.

iv' The management has represented that. to thc best of its knorvledge and belief. as disclosed
in the Note 38 olthe financial statenent.

i. No funds hal'e been advanccd or loaned or investcd (eitlrer tiom borrowed lirnds
or share premium or anv other sources or kind offunds) hr th to or in
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For ABCD & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FirmNo:0164155

Vinod R- Partner

Membership No: 2 I 4l .li
Place: Chennai.
Date:01-08-2024
UDIN: 242 l4 I 43BKCOVO2002

any other person or entity. including foreign entities 'lntermediaries'. r,r.ith thc
understanding. whether recorded in u'riting or othcrwise. that lhc Intr.rnrcdiar\
shall. whether. directll or indirectll,' lend or inrest in other pc'r.sons or enriri(\
identified in anv manner rvhatsoever b1 or on behalf of the companr 'Ultimatc
Beneficiaries' or provide an\ guarantee, securitr or the like on bchatf of thc
Ultimate Benefi ciaries: and

No funds have been received by the companl liom any person or entitv. including
foreign cntities 'Funding Padies'. with the undcrslanding. whethcr recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the companl' shall. nhether. directll.or indirectll. lend
or invesl in other persons or entities identified in ant manner u hatsoer.er h1 or on
behalf ol'the Funding Party 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or pror.idc an\ guarantee.
securiq or the like on behalf ol'lhe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on audit procedures carried out b1 us. that we have considcred rcasonablc
and appnrpriate in the circunrstances. nothing has come lo our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain
any material misstatement.

l: The Companl, has not declared or paid any dividends during the )'ear and accordinglr
reporting on the compliance with scction 123 of the Companies Act. 20'13 is not applicable
lor thc r ear under considr.'ration.

Based on our examination which included test checks. the companl, has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account ',rhich has a ltature of recording audil trail
(edit log) facilitl and the same has operatcd throughout thc l ear for all relevanl transactions
recorded in the respective softrvare. Further. during the course ofour audit rve did not conre
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report

( Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under'Report on other legal and regulaton requirements' section ol'our
report to thc members ot'l)anub Hontes Private Limited o1'even date)

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 6fthe
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal flnancial conlrols orer flnancial reporting ofDanuh Ilomes Priratc I-inrited
("the Company") as of March 3l . 2021. in conjunction with our audit of the Ind ,,\S financial slatemenrs
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibilitl for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible fbr establishing and nraintaining internal financial controls
based on the intemal control over financial reporting critcria established by the Companl considcring thc
essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal [.inancial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued b1' the lnstitule of Chartered Accountants of lndia. These
responsibilities include the design. implementation and rnaintenance ofadequate intemal financial controls
that were operating effeclivell' lbr ensuring the orderll and efficient conduct of its business. including
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets. the prevenlion and detection ol'liauds
and errors. the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records. and the timell preparation ol'reliable
financial information. as required under the Companies Act. 2011.

Auditor's Responsibilig

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls ovcr llnancial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS tinancial statements based on our audil. \\ie conducled our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit ol Internal Financial (lontrols Over Financial t{eporting
(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards t-rn Auditing as specit'icd under section 143( l0) of the Companies
Act, 20'13, to the extent applicable to an audit olintemal financial controls and" both issued by the lnstitute
of Chartered Accountants o1'lndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note requirc that',ve contplr sith
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about u-hether adequate
iirtemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements \\as
established and maintained and i{'such controls operated effectivell, in all material respects.

Our audit involves perlorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequac-v of the internal
financial controls over financial repo(ing with reference to these Ind AS financial statemenls and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit ofinternal linancial controls orcr financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with ref'erence to these Ind AS
financial statements. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the
design and operating eflectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. l he procedurcs selected
depend on the auditor's judgement. including the assessrnent of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements. whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence wc have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis tbr
our audit opinion on the intemal hnancial controls over financial reporting rvith refcrence to thesc Ind AS
financial statements.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting n,ith Reference to these Financial
Statements

A Company's intemal financial control over flnancial reporting rvith reference to these Ind AS llnancial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabititl of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally
acccpled accounting principles.

A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS tlnancial
statements includes those policics and procedurcs that

(l) pertain to the maintenancc nf' records lhat. in reasonablc detail. accuratelv and fairh, reflecl the
transactions and dispositions olthe assets ofthe company:

(2) provide reasonable assurancc that transactions are recolded as necessar\ to permit prcpanttion ol
financial statements in accordance rvith generalll accepted accounting principles. and that receipls and
expenditures of the compan) arc bcing made onll in accordancc riith authorizations ofmanagcntent and
directors ofthe companl-: and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition.
use. or disposition ofthe companJ"s assets thal could have a nraterial eft-ect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to
these Ind AS Financial Statemcnts

Because ofthe inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting rvith rcf'erencc to
these Ind AS financial statements. including the possibility ofcollusion or improper management override
ofcdntrols, material misstatements due to error or fraud ma1'occur ard not be detected. Also. projections
ofany evaluation of the internal tlnancial controls over llnancial reporling uith reference to these lnd AS
financial statements to future pcriods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to thesc lnd AS financial statements ma1- become inadequate because olchanges
in conditions. or that the degree ol'compliance rvith the policies or procedures may-. deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion. the Companl has. in all material respects. adequate intemal flnancial controls over llnancial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS linancial statements and such intemal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating eff-ectirell as at
March 31. 2024. based on the intemal conlrol over tlnancial reporting criteria estahlished bv the ('ontpanr
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit ol'lntemal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

For ABCD & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 01641 55

Vinod R- Partner

Membership No: 2 I 4l 43

Place: Chennai.
Date:01-08-202.1
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Annexure "8" to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Refened to in paragraph I under 'Report on other legal and regulator_r requirements' section ol'our
report to the members of Danub Homes Private Limited of even date)

l. Fixed assets:

a) (A) ln our opinion and according to the inlormation and explanations given to us. the

Company is maintaining proper records shou ing full particulars. including quantirati\ e

details and situation of propcrtl. plant and equipnrcnt.

(B) The Compan,v does not have any intangible assets.

b) The propertl,. plant and equipment of the Companl. rvere ph1'sicallv verified hi rhe

management during the 1'ear. According to the inlirrmation and explanations gi\en to us

and as examined b1'us. no material drscrepancies rvere noticed on such verification.

c) According to the infbrmation and explanations given to us and the records examined by.,

us. we report that. the Conrpanl has no immovahle properties of land and building held

as Propert)'. plant and equipment or Invcstmcnt Prope$ as at the balance shcet datc.

I{ence reporting under Clause 3(iXc) is not applicable.

d) The company'has not revalued its propert'. plant and equipment during the 1ear.

e) Based on the information and explanations tumished to us and as represented bv lhe

management. no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Companl
for holding benami propertl' under the Prohibition ol Benami ['ropeq' Transactions Act.
1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988

(45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder. and therelole the question ofour commenting

on whether the Companl has appropriatel! discloscd the details in its financia[ statemcnts

does not arise.

2. lnventories

a) The inventories have been physicalll' r'erified bl the management during the 1ear. In our
opinion, the coverage and prr'rcedure olsuch verilication b1'thc managentent is appropriate
and no discrepancies ol l0?ir or more in the aggregate for each class ol'inventon rere
noticed on such lerification.

b; The Companl has not been sanctioned r.rorking capital limits in cxcess oilive crore rupees.
in aggregate, fronr banks or financial institutions on thc basis ol'security ofcurent assets at

any point of time during the y'ear.

a) In our opinion and according to infbrmation and explanation given to us. the Companl has

made loans in the nature of unsecured loans to companies and t.imited Liabilitl Partnership.
The aggregate amount of transaction during the lcar and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date u,ith respect to loan to holding company. subsidiary companies and I'ellorv
subsidiary companies is mentioned in the lollorving table.

J
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(Rs. ln.\lillion.st

Advances in
nature of loa ns

Aggregate amounl granted/ provided during the 1,car

Subsidiaries

Holding compan)'+

Associates

Fellow subsidiarics

Others

7 t -1.06

I 5;1.1 3

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet datc in
respect of above cases

- Subsidiaries
- Holding company*

- AssociatesiJointVenlures
- Fellow subsidiaries

- Others

194;+.04

7.51

*Holding Conrpanl includes Ultimate Holding Company

b) ln our opinion and according to inlormation and explanation given to us. the inrestments
made, guaranlees provided. securitl' gil'en and the terms and conditions of the grant ot all
loans and advances in the nature ol'loans and guarantees providcd are not prcjudicial kr thc

company's interest.

c) The terms of arrangement do not stipulate anv repavment schedule and the loans are

repayable on demand r.r'ith interest.

d) ln the absence of stipulated schedule of repay'ment of principal and pa1'ment of interest. u'e

are unable to comment as to whether there is anv amount u'hich is overdue for more than 90

days.

e) In our opinion and according to infbrmation and cxplanation given to us. the companl has

granted the loans or advances in lhe nature of loans either repayable on demand or rvithout
specifring an)'terms or period of repal ment aggregating to Rs.867.19 (in Millions) ( lOOozir

to the total loans and advances in the nature of loans granted during the _vear). The aggrqgate

of loans granted to related pa(ics as defined in clause (76) ol section 2 ol'the Conrpanics
Act.20l3 is Rs.867 19 (in Millions).

f) Since the term of arrangement do not stipulate an\ repa)'mcnl schedule and the loans are

repayable on demand. no question of overdue amounts u'ill arise in respect of the loans
granted to the parties listed in the register maintained under section 189 olthc Act.

4. In our opinion and according to information and explanation gilcn to us. the Companv has nol
granted any loans or provided an1' guarantees or given anl securitv to r.rhich the p
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In respect of investments made by the Company and loans given to parties. the provisions ofSection
186 of the Companies Act. 2013 are not applicable. as the Company is solell engaged in
infiastructure activities. including housing projects as specitied in Schedule VI of the Act.

5. The Companl'has not accepted an.v deposits fiom the public and hence the directives issued b1 the

Reserve Bank ol India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or an)' other relevant pro'r'isions o1'1he

Act and the Companies (Acceptance ol' Deposit; Rules. 2015 regarding to the deposits accepted

from the public are not applicable.

6. The maintenance ofcost rccords has been specified bl the Central Govemment under sub section
(l) of section 148 olthe Act. in respect of the activities carried on bl the companl'. Hou'ever. the

overall tumover fiom all its products and sen,ices is less than.35 crores in the preceding tlrrancial
year. Hence. reporting undcr clause (vi) is not applicablc to thc companl

7. In respect ofstatutorl dues:

a) According to inlbrmalion and explanations given to us and on the basis of our exanlination
ofthe books ofaccount. and records. the Companl has generalll' been regular lexcept lirr the

dues mentioned below in the clause (b) ofpara (vii)l in depositing undisputed statutorl dues

including lncome-Tax, Good and Service tax ((]S-t'). and any other statutory ducs with the

appropriate aulhtrrillcs.

b) Undisputed amounts pal able in arears ir^s on 3 l'r Nlarch 2024 for a period of more than six
months from the date they payable are given belorv:

Am ount
/Rs in millitm: l'eriod of l)ofault

5..t9

Inconre tax act. l96l Interest on TDS

c) According to the inlbrmation and explanations givcn to us. there are no dues of income tax.
Good and Sen,ice tax (GST) outstanding on account ofanl dispute.

F\'t:-tl

Nature of the
I)ucsNamc of the Statute

t.07

0.02

FY 20-l I

F'\' 2l -21Interest on CiST
Pay ablc

lnterest on GST
Pavable

&
Services Tax 7011

Interest on tiST
Pa1'able

Central Goods &
Serv'ices Tax. 2017

Central Goods &
Services Tax, 20 t 7

Central Goods

Interest on GST
Payable

April 223 to August
2023

Central Goods &
Services Ta.r. 201 7

0..10

0.01
F \- I3 -:-1
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Name of statute AmountNature of
dues

lnc0mc tax t7 .61Income tax act-
I 961

8. In our opinion and according to the inlbrmation and explanations given to us, there are no

transactions not recorded in the books ofaccount that hale been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the l ear in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act. I 961 1'{3 of I 961 ).

9.

a) [n our opinion and according to thc inlbrmation and explanations given to us. the Companl
has not defaulted ln the rcpal'mcnt of dues to banks or other borrowings or in the pa1'nrent

of interest thereon to any lender during the year. The lntcr Corporate Borror.r'ings arc

repayable on demand and terms and conditions lbr payment of intercst thereon have not

been stipulated. According to the intbrmation and explanations given to us. such loans and

interest thereon har.e not been demanded fbr repay nrcnt during the relerant financial year.

b) ln our opinion and according to tlre inlbrmation and explanations given to us. the Companl
is not declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us..the term loans

obtained during the )ear \\'ere applied lbr the purpose lbr u'hich thev rvere availed.

d) In our opinion and according to the infbrmation and explanations given to us. funds raised
on short term basis have not been utilized for long-term purposes.

e) The Company does no1 have an1, subsidiaries/associatc's/ioint-\'entures and accordingl1,
paragraphs 3 (ix) (0 olthe Order are not applicable.

10.

a) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Companl
has not raised any money by rval'ofan initial public offer or further public oft-er lincluding
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingl). clause(xXa) oithe Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to the inlbrmation and explanations given to us. the Companl'
has not made an1, preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertihlc
debentures (full.v. partially, or optionally convertible) during the 1'ear. Accordingll .

paragraph 3 (x) (b) ofthe Order is not applicable.

11.

a) To the best ofour knosledge and according to the inlbrmation and explanations given to us.
no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company bl anl person has been
noticed or reported during the year. Accordingll. clause(xi Xa) of the ()rdcr is not applicable.

b) No report under subsection 1 I 2) ol' section l,l3 of the C'ompanics Act has been filed in lorm

Period to
s'hich the
amount
relates

A\', t02-.i-
24

ADT-4 as prescribed under rule l3 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors.l
the central govemment. during the and up to the date of this report.

Forum r*'here
dispute relates to

( ommissioner' Ol'
Income Tax

(Appeal)

Rule .l rvith
oo & o
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that all liabilities thlling due *ithin a period ol'rrne I
discharged by the companl as and u'hen thel fall ciuc

ear from the balance sheet date. u.ill gct

c) To the best ofour knouledge and according to the information and explanations giren to us.
no whistle-blower complaints have been received b1'the Companl.during the 

"u-.ear.

12. The Compan-v., is not a Nidhi ('ompany. Therelbre. the provisions of clause(xir) of the Order are not
applicable to the Compan] .

13. In our opinion and according to thc information and explanations given lo us. all transactions uith
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 ol Companies Act. :0ll and thc
details have been disclosed in the standalone lnd AS Financial Statentcnls as required hr thc
applicable accounting standards.

14.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Companl
has an intemal audit system. commensurate with the size and nature ol'its business.

b) The reports olthe intemal auditors for the year under audit were considered by us. as part of
our audit procedures.

15. Based upon the audil procedures performed and the inlbrmation and explanations given b1 the
management. the companl'has not entered into anl,non-cash transactions \vith directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingll'. the pro'r'isions of section 192 and clause(xr'1ol'the Order are nol
applicable to the Compan) .

16.

a) In our opinion. thc companv is not required to be regislered under section 45 IA of the
Resen'e Bank ol'lndia Act. 1934 and accordingl). the provisions ol'clause(xvi) (a) and (h)
of the Order are not applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company
is not a Core lnlestment Companl (ClC) and it does not have an1 other companies in thc
Group as a CIC. Accordingly. paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) and (d) ol the of the Order are nor

, applicable.

17. The Qornpany has no1 incurred cash losses in the financial year and incurred Rs0.65 (ln l[illionsl of
Cash Loss in the immediate ly preceding financial year.

18. There has been no resignation ofthe statutory auditors during the J'ear. Accordirrgll. clause(xviii) of
the Order is not applicable.

19. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofthe
financial ratios. ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment offinancial
liabilities. other information accompanying the financial statements. our knowledge oflhe board of
directors and management plans. there are no material uncertaint_\- exists as on the date ofthe audit
repo( that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date ol'balance sheet as and
when they fall due *'ithin a period ofone year from the balance sheel date. We. hou'ever. state that
this is not an assurance as tr) the luture viabilitl o{'the compan}. We lurther state that our reportinE
is based on facts up to the date of audit report and u'e neither gir,e anr,guarantee nor an\ assurance



20. In our opinion and according to tlre information and explanations given to us. section 135 olthe
Companies act is not applicable to the compan). Accordingly. reporting under clause3(xxXa) and (b)
of the order is not applicable for the year.

21. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit ol'standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingll. no comment in respect ofthe said clause has been included in this
report.

For ABCD & Co.
('hartered Accountants
F irm No: 0l 641 5S

Vinod R- Partner

Membership No 214143
Place: Chennai.
Date: 0l -08-2024
LJDIN: 242 I 4 l,13BKGOVO2002
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Danub Homes Privatc Limilcd
Balance Sheet as at March 31. 202,1

dll anto ls ere in llillion:. unlcs., othentise ttulcd)

As ,t
March 31. 2024 llrrch 3l 2021Parliculers Nolcs

Assels

Non-current assets

Propcrty, plant and equipmcnt

Capital work in progess

Financial assets

O$cr financial assels

Dcferred tax assets (Det)

Current xssets

Inventories

Finanaial rsscts

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Ban-k balances other than cash and cash

equivalens
lnvestments

Irans
O(her financial assets

Othcr current asscts

Current tax assct (net)

Tolal asscts

Equity rnd lirbilities
Equity
Equiry sharc capital

Orher equity

Totrl equity
Li.bilities
Non-.urrent liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Other financial liabilities

Deferrcd tax liabilities (net)

Other non-currelt liabilities

4

6

8

3.52

t7.26
2.51

18.89 ll92
101.83

39.67 r36.32

7.032.309 5.160.52

45.tI

l0
ll

90.45

55.82

235.68

602.00

44.95t2

4

5

6

7

l3

1.17

1,951.55

636.46

3M.64

1,606.12

297.96

243.83

a,u6.12 10.063.44

t4
l5

0. t0
959.68

{i.2E5.99

0.l0
(r4.89)

959.78 _____________M4

2.360.96 2.606.01l6
t'l

8

l8
3,249.38 2.606.0-3

I

;>\-
--\:'.

10.199.76

115.75

'7 t2.6',1

a{i



Danub Homes Privatc l,imitcd
Italance Sheet as et illarch 31.2024

ll ano nts are in ilillio s. unless othe,lrise stdtcd)

As at
Particulars iuarch 3l 2021 Itarch.ll L023
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings
Trade payables

Dues to micro small and medium enlerprises

Ducs to others

Other financial liabilities
Other currcnt liabilities
Liabilities for current tax (net)

FoTABCD&Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0l64l55

For and on behrlfofthe Borrd ofDirectors of
D.nub Homes Privrte Llmited
CIN : U70I00TN2020PTC 14003 9

_____________lJz 7,608.52

'I'olrl lirbilities -----------J326.21 10.214.55

Total equitt' ahd liabilities ______________!l!q__________l_9J!2JL

The aocompanying no(cs form an intcgral part oflhe financial statements

t6

t9
l9
t7
l8
ll

nMN

400.4r

124.78

t4'7.94

70.19

3,314.37

t9.14

r00.35

l13.r0
282.'76

35.6.1

7,0t L45
65.22

PR

(c1
(,

Membcrship Number : 214143

Vinod R
Pa(ner

Place : Chennai

Date :01-08-2024

hen
Director
DIN:00793551

Director
DIN: 091461l4

Place : Chennai

Dale :01-08-2024
Place : Chennai

Date :01-08-2024

CHENNAI.l,I
FRN 016415

cD&

z
{



D2ruh Homrs Privrr€ t.imirrd
Statemenl of Prolit rnd Loss for lhe yelr eDded Mrrch 31. 2024

lAll unou ts dre u, Millio r, utlest ofietalise stdted)

Particulrrs For lhe ycar ended For thc year €ndcd
llrrch -ll 2021 NIrrch 3l ,023

Income

Rcvenu€ from contracts with €ustomcrs

Totrl lncom.

Vinod R

5.968.10

6.09

16.08

2.08

:0
2t

38.16

Erp€nses

Cost of raw m:terials, componenis and stores consufied

Construction activity cxpcfl s€s

(lncreasey decrcasc in stock of flals, Iand stock and work-in-
progress and tr:ded goods

Employee benefi ts expcnsc

Finance costs

Deprcciation and amortization cxpcnsc

Other expenses

Totrl .rp€fica

ProfiU0oss) befor€ trx
( l) Current rax

(2) Dcfcrred tax charsc{crcdit)
Income tax expense

Profit/ooss) for the yerr

Totrl compr€hensiv. income for the yerr, net oftrx

E.mihgs pcr.hrr.

Basic, compuled or th. basis ofEofit for the y€a! (ln a)

Diluted, computcd on thc basis ofprofit for the )lar (In {)

As per our r€port of cvcn dstc

FoTABCD&Co.
Chaflered AccoutaDts
Firm Regist'ation Numb6 : 0l64155

18t.41

2,029.61

1.003.60

2,266.35

(3,269.95\

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

t.843.68

0.18

10.50

t.l5
4.13

12.85

0.93

18.87

29

29

tJ03.57
5r.50

277.60

32r.10

5.51

82.41

(75.12)

7.O9

974-57 (1.58t

l0

97,451

97,451

(159)

(159)

For .nd on bchrlf of the Bo.rd of Dlrcctorr of
Drrub Homes Privrt€ Llmitcd
CIN : U70100TN2020PTC140039

FR/

nnah
c
t'

\)

Membership Number : 214143

Arun MN

Dirc.tor
DINj 00793551

Dir€rtor
DIN:09146314

Placa : Chcnnai

Datr :01-08-2024

Placc : Ctcnnai
Date :01-08-2024

tRN 01641

CHENNAI.lT

oc

z{

D8

____________j21!$

914.51 (1.5E)

S

{.

Placc : Chennai

Dale :01-08-2024



Drnub Homes Prilalc Limitcd
Strtement ofChanges in Equiq'for the !'€ar ended N{arch 3l' 2024

(All amounts are in Millions, unless olhervise slaled)

:r. Equily share caPital:
Nunrbtrs Amounl

Equitv sh.res of{10 erch issued, subsc bed and lu llv paid

As at April 01, 2022

Issue ofshare capital

As at Msrch 31,2023

Equity shrres oftl0 esch issued, subscribcd rnd fully peid

As at April 01, 2023

Issue ofshare capital

As.t M.rch 31, 2024

b. Othcr equity

I0,000 0.10

r0.000

10.000

0.t 0

0.r0

t0.000 0.10

Retained
€arnings

Totsl

As ra April 01, 2022

Profit / (loss) for the period

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income (loss)

As at March 31.2023

As rt April 01, 2023

Profi( / (loss) for the period

Other comprehensivc income

Total comprehensive income (loss)

As at March 31, 2024

As per our report of even date

FoTABCD&Co.
Chancred Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0164155

Vltrod R

Partner

Membership Numbcr : 214143

( r 3.31)
(r.58)

(r 3.3t )
(r.s8)

(r.sE) (1.s8)

rl4.t9| (t4.89)

(14.89)

9't4.51

(r4.E9)

974.57

914.51 974.51

959_68959.68

For and on behalf ofthe Bortd ofDirectors of
Drnub Homes Priv.te l-imited
CIN : U70l 00TN2020PTC 140019

:6e%l{l rnai Ir

Arun I\{N

Director
DIN:00793551

Director
DIN: 09146314

(
8X,$LTil;

o

z
-<,

A

&o C

Place : Chennai

Date :01-08-2024

Place : Chennai

Date :01-08-2024

Place : Chennai

Date :01-08-202r

t



Drnub Hon'cs l) iratc l.imitcd
Statemenl ofCash l'lorvs for lhe year endcd March 31,202.1
(A amo nts ak,Dt Mi ionr, untess other,-Lsc statul)

ttarrh 3l 2n21 Uarch -11 :0tl
Operrling .clivilics
Proffr(loss) bcforc trx

Adjuslrn. s to t.concilc proftl b.lorc tax to ,t.t cash fo*s:
DeprEciation and amonisation.xpeises

Wor*ing capilal a.lj kslrncnls :
(lncre{se)/decrcas! in trade re.eivables
(Increzse)/dccrcasc in invcnrory
(Incrase)/decrease i! other fr!.ancial assets

(Increase)/dccrease in other current asse6

Incrcasd(dccr.as.) in tradc payabl€s

Incrcasc{dccrcase) in other fmancial liability
hcreasd(d€cr€asc) in othcr currErt liability
Crsh gcnerrt.d from op€rrting rctivities
Income tax (laid)/rcfunded

Net c.sh flows from/(u.ed ltr) op€r.dng rctlvltlcs

Irvesting rtMties
Purchasc of propcrty, plani and cquipmmt
Purchase of financial inshtncnts
lran givcn to relalcd partiG
Movemcnt in bank dcpGirs (mao[ity of rrlorc rh8n 3 months)

Interest receivcd (financc income)

N.t crsh flo*s froEv(us.d ir) investlng rcdvttLs

FinrDclng tctivitlei
Interest paid

Procecds from long terin borowings
Repayment of long tcrm borrowings
Procceds4rcpaym.nt) from sho( tcrm bonouiogs
Nct cr'h flo$,s frorr(urcd i!) finrrcing .ctMtle.
Nct incrczsc in cash and cash cquirBlcnts

Net forcign cxcba[gc differeocc

Cash and cash equivalmb at lbc beginning of thc ycar

C.!h rnd ct'h .qutvrl.ntr rt ycrr crd

As per our reporr of evm date

Vinod R

Panner

Mcmbcrship Numbcr : 214143

t.t5
3't4.22

0.93

296.M

1.i03 66

145.23

1,871.?8

t2.76
(60.81)

(r23.14)
(24.741

(2,984.43)

5 5r

(l l?.65)
(3,435.71)

(29.89)
(211.98)

t67.98
29 42

4,38/.34
170.87 900.07
(91.57) (29.s3)

(19.36)

11.11',
(3,r4.83)

(0.16)

6.58

(1.0e)

(559.87)
(34.80)

24.37

(l r4.91)
(24s.07)

(155.33)

1.150.48

(2,283.30)
(278.58)300.06

(259.94) 233.27

602.00

55.82

69.58

602.00

(546.18)

140039

537.42

FoTABCD&Co.
Chartcr.d Accountants

Firm Rcgistration Numbcr : 0l64155

For.nd on behrlfof th0 Borrd of Direclors of
Drnub Homes Privrte Limited
CIN : U70l

PR

NTI o
2.

c "T J
Dircctoa

DIN:00793551
DirEctor

DIN:09146314

Chennai
600 041

Place : Chennai

Dat :01-08-2024
Place : Chennai

Dare : ot-08-2024
Place : Cbennai

Date :01{8-2024

73.30 870.5,t

(35e.5.{) (571.J9)



Dlnub Homes Prir.re Limited
N otes ro rinenci.l st.tements for lhe I err cnded 3 l M rrc h 2024
(-4ll omouars tt in Millions, unless oth!rllllse stated)

l.Corporat€ inform.tion
Danub Homes Privar. Limited (the 'Company ) was incorpomted on | | D€cember, 2020 under the provisions of the Companies

Acr applicablc in India ("Act"). Thc rcgisrercd officc is locatcd at NPL Dcvi. No l1l, L.B.Road, Thimvanmipr, Chcnnai
600Mt.

The Company is cnSaged primarily in rhe business ofreal estate conslructions. development and othcr relaled activities in lndra

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolulion ofthe directors on 0l August, 2024

2,M.terirl .ccounting polici€r

This note provides a list of the material accounting policics adopled in the pr@ar.tion ofthe financi6l statemenls- Ttese policies

have beln consistcntly applied to all thc pcriods prcscntcd, unlcss othcrwisc statcd.

2.1 Brsis of preparrtion
In accordance ri/ith the notification issued by the MCA, lhe Company has sdopted Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS)
spccified undcr scction 133 of the Act, rcad with th€ Companics (lndian Accounting Slandards) Rulcs, 2015, as smcndcd and
presentation requiremen6 ofDivision ll ofSchedule III lo the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule n).
Th€ sraDdalone financial statements of th. Company are prepared and presented in accordance with Ind AS. The slandalone

financial statemcnb havc been prcpared on the historical cost basis, except for cenain financial instrumcnts which are mcasurcd

at fair \alues at thc cnd of cach rcpodng pcriod as explaincd in the accounting policies below. Hislorical cost is generally based

on the fair valuc of the considration givcn in exchange for goods and services.

2.2 Summrry ofother M.t€ria! .ccounting policies

(r) UsG of.stl .t.5
The preparation of financial statemenrs in conformity with Ind AS requires the managernent to rDak€ judgmcfits, cstimatcs a.d
assumptions $at affcct the rcportcd amounls of revmues, cxpens€s, assets and licbilitics rnd the disclosure of contingcnt

liabilities, at the cnd of the reponing pcriod. Although thcsc cstimates are bascd on lhc mana8emcnt's bcst knowledge of currcnt

events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and eslimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material

ad.iusrmcnt ro thc carrying arnormts of asscts or liabilitics. Thc effcct of chargc in an accounling cstimatc is recogniz.d
prospectively.

(b) Currert verrus non{urr.Bt chssiricrtiotr
Th€ Company prcsa s asscts and liabilitics in lhc balaDcc shcd bascd on curren, non-cufient classification.

An asset is trcalcd as currcnt when it is:
- Expcst i to bc rcalizcd m iDtcEdad to bc sold or consumcd in mnnal opcrating cycla

- Held primarily for lhe prllpqte of riding
- Expectcd to bc rcaliz.d within twclvc rnonths aftcr thc rcponing pcriod, or
- Cash or cssh cquival.n! udess rBtrictcd from b.ing cxchsngcd or uscd to scttlc a liability for.t l.ast rwclve rnontlls aflet (he

rcpodng pcriod

All othcr asscls arc clalsificd as non-currcnt.

A liability is cuIrctri wbcr
- lt is cxpeclcd !o bc scnled in nonnal opcrating cycle

- It is held primarily for lie purpo6c of trading

- It is duc to bc scBl.d wiahin twclvc months after the reponing period, or
- There is no unconditional right to dcfcr thc settlemeot of thc liability for at least tPclvc months aflcr thc reporting pcriod

All other liabilitics ar. classified as non-current.

The operating c1,clc is thc time hv.ecn thc acquisition of assets for processing and thct realisation in crsh and cash equi\als$.
Thc opcrating cyclc of thc Cornpan/s rcal cstate opcrations tBrics from proj.ct to project dcpcndinS on the size ofthc projcct
t)'Ilc of dcvclopmcn! projcc! cffnplcxidcs and r.latcd epprovels. Accordirgl, projcct rclatcd asscts and lhbilitics arc classilicd

into cunent and non-cufrcnt based on thc oper.ting cycle ofthc projecl All other asse6 and lhbilitics have fied into

current and noncurrent based on a penod oftwelve mondrs.

Deferred tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-cunent ass€ls/ liabilities.
c Cc

FRN 016,1155
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Dsnub Home. Pri\rte Linritcd
\otcs .o financirl slalements for the ]e.r ended 3l March 202,1

(.41u',touttts urc t,t Mtllk ls. u ess otlrcrwrc \tuted)

(c) Property, phnt rnd equipment
All property, plant and equipment except freehold land are stated at historical cost less accumulat€d dcpr€ciation. The cosl
compriscs purchasc price, import dutics, non-refundable taxes. borrowing cosls if capiialization crt.raa arc m€t and dirccdy
anributable cost ofbringing lhe ass€t lo ils worling condilion for th€ intended use. Any tade discounts and rebates are deducred
in arrivinB at the purchase price-

Each part of an itcm of property, plarl and cquipment wirh a cost that is significanr in relarion Io rhc total cost of thc itcm is

depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. when significant pa(s of plant and €quipment are

required ro bc replaccd at intcrvals, rhc Company depreciates rhem separatelybascd on rheir specific uscful lives. Likewise, when
a rnajor inspeclion is p€rformed, its cost is recogniz€d in thc carrying amounl ofthc plant and equipment as a replacement ifthe
recognition crileria are satisfied. All other repair and mainl€nance co6ls are recognized in profit or loss as rncurred.

Subscquent expcnditurc rclatcd to an itcm of propcrty, plant and cquipment is addcd to its book valuc only if it incrcases thc
future ben€fits from its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expmses on existing prop€(y, plant and

equipmen!, including day-to-day repair and mainlenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are char8ed to the statement of
profit and loss for lhc pcriod during which such cxpcnses arc incurrcd.

Borrowing cos6 dir.ctly attributable lo acquisition ofproperty, plant and equipment which take substantial period of tim€ to get

ready for irs intcnded use are also includcd lo the extent thcy relate lo the period till such asse6 are rcady ro be pur to use.

Advances paid towards lhe acquisition of property, plant and equipment outslandin8 at each balancc shccl date is classificd as

capital advances under olher non-current assets.

An item ofpropcrty, plant and cquipment and any significant part initially rccognized is de-recognizcd upon disposal or whcn no

future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Ary gain or loss arising on de-recognition ofthe asset (calculated

as thc diffcrcncc bctwcro the Dct disposal procceG aDd lhc carryhg amouDl of thc asscl) is iocludcd in the incomc statcmmt

when the Property. plaol aod equipmcnt is de-recognized.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred durinS construction penod is
capitalised to the €xlent io which lhe expenditure is indirectly relaled to construclion or is incadental lhereto. Other indir€ct

expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not relatcd to the construction activity
nor is incidental thcreto is charged lo the sratement ofprofit and loss.

Costs of asscts not rcady for use al thc balance sheel &tc arc discloscd under capilal work- ift. progrcss.

(d) Dcprecirtior oh property, phnt rnd equipmetrL

Deprecialioo is calculated oo \arittcn do*m valuc melhod using thc follo$dng useful lives cstimatcd by the management, which arc

cqual to thosc prcscribad uddcr Schcdulc II to thc Coripanics Ac! 2013, cxccpt ccrtain categorics of asscls whose uscfirl lifc is

cstimated by thc management based on planned usagc and tcchnical cvaluation thcrcon:

Useful life
Burldings 60
Tempomry StrucNres l
tumrture & f(trn8s l0
Planr&Machinery-Civil l2-15
OfIice Equ,pmenl 5

Vehicles 8,10
Computers 3

Servcrs and octwork cquipmeDt 6

L.rs.hold improvcmcn6 are amortiscd ovcr lhe remininS p6iod of leasc or th€ir cstimated useful lifc ( l0 years), whichcvcr is
shorter.

The residual valucs, usrful lives and m.lhods of depreciation of prop€rty, plant and equipmcnt and investmmt property are
rcviewed at each financial ye3r end and adjustcd prospcctiv.ly, ifappropriate.

(€) Inlrrgibla r$.tr
Intangible asscls acquircd s€paratcly ar. mea$red on initial rccognition at cost. Following ihitial rccognitiorl itrlangibl. asscrs

arc caried st cosl lcss accumiatcd amonization and gccumulatcd impairment losses, afany.

Intangible assets comprising of computcr softwarc are amonited using w ttcn down valuc method ovcr a pcriod of three ycars,
which is estirnatcd by thc nranagcmcnt to bc the usefirl lifc oflhc asset.

The rcsidual tBlucs, useful lives and mcthods of amonization of intangible assc6 are reviewed at each finaNial ycsr end .nd
edjusted prospcctivcly, if appropriate.

Gaiis or losscs arisilg from dc-rc.ognition of atr intangiblc assct ar]c Ecasw.d as the differcncc bclwc.n thc n€r
proceeds and th€ carrying artrounr of thc asset and are recognized in the statcmcnt ofprofit and loss €

+

\

disposal
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(f) Investm€nt propcrty

The Property thal is hcld for long term rental yield or for capilal appreciation or both, and that is nor occupied by rhe Company is

classified es an lnvcshcnt Property. Inveshent prop€rties are measured initially at cost, including lr'ansaction costs. Subs€qucnt

to initial rccognition, investrncnt propcrtics arc slalcd al cost less accumulatcd dcprcciation and accumulated impairmcnt loss, if
anv.

The Company assesses ar each date ofbalancc sh€et whether a fiDancial asset or a Company offinancial ass€ls is impaired. Itld
AS 109 requires expecred credit losses to be measured through a loss allorrance. Thc Company recognizes lifetime expecled

losscs for all contract assets and / or all tsadc rcccivablcs lhal do not consdtutc a financing lransaction. For all othcr financial
assets, expacted credit losses arc measured at an amounl equal to the l2-month expected credit losses or at an amount cqual b th€

lifc timc cxpcctcd crcdit losses if the credi( risk on thc financial assct has incrcas.d significanlly since initial rccognition.

B. NoGflr.ncl.l r$ata
The Company ssscsics it c{ch rcporting &tc whcthcr ther is an ir ication thlt an assct may be impaired. Ifrny indication cxists,

or whao alnual inrpeimcat trsting for an assct is rcquircd, thc Company cstindcs tlc assct's recovciablc arnount. A.tr asset's

recovcrablc ahount is lhc higher of an assct's or cash-galeratinS unit's (CGl, nct selling price and its lue in us.. Thc
ncco\rrable amount is detcrmincd for an individusl assct, Dnless the assct do6 nol generate cash inflows that src largcly
independcnt of thosc ftom other asscis or Companys of assets. Where thc calrying amount of an assct or CGU ercecds its
rccoverablc arnounl, lhe asset is considercd impaircd altd is written down to its recovemble amount. In assessing value in use, the

estimatcd futura cash flows arc discountcd !o thcir prasaot value using a prc-tax discount ratc that rcflccG culrent market
sssessmcnts of the time value of moncy and th. risks spccific lo th. a5s€t. In dclcrmining net scllinS pricq rcccnt market

trsnsactions arc takcn into accounl ifarailabla. lfno such transactions crll bc idcntifia4 aIr appropriale ililuation modcl is uicd.

Imp.irmcnl losscs arc rccognizcd in lhc statcnEnt of profil and loss. Aficr impairmcnl, depreciation is providcd on thc rcvis€d
carrying amount of$e assel over its reftaining us.ful lifc.

(h) Lc.rc.
The Company assGs€s al contract inception whethd a conlract is, or contrins, a lease. That is, if thc contIacl conveys tha right to
control thc usc of aD idcotificd assc! for a pcriod of dmc in cxcbangc for considcfation.

Wh.r. tb. Comprny li lcrs..
A contact is, or contains, a lease if lhe contract involvas -
i. Thc usc of an idcntifi.d assct,

ii. Thc right lo oblain substantially all thc cconomic bcacfits f.om usc oflhc idc ificd assc! and
iii. Thc right to dircct thc use of Ihe idcntificd sssct.

The Cornpany applics a single re.oSnition and mcasur.rncnt approach for all lcases, cxcept for short-term leascs
va,ue assets. The Compahy recognises leasc liabilitics to make lease payments and nght-of-use asse6 ,r7 .)

'- l;iAl.14 5
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the undcrlyin8 asscts
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..

The co6t includes fie cost ofreplrcing parls and borrowing costs for long-t.rm construction projects ifthe rccognition critena are

m€t. Whcn significant parts of the invcstmcnt propcrty arc rcquired to be rcplaccd at inrervals, thc Company dcprcciatcs them
s€paralely bascd on lheirspecific useful livcs. Allother repair and maintenanc€ costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred-

Expendilurc dircc y relating lo conslruction activity is capitalised. lndircci cxpendilure incurred during consrrucrion period is
capitalised to lhe extcnt to which the expenditure is indirEctly rclal€d to construction or is incidental thercto. Othcr indirect
exp€ndinrc (includinS borrowinB costs) incurcd during thc constdction pcriod $hich is not relatcd to the construction activity
nor is incidental thercto is charged to the statcm.nt of profit and lo6s.

Investmcni propcnics arc de-recognizd when thc cfltity transfers conEol of thc samc to the buyer. Funhcr thc cntity also

derecogniscs invcs(mcnt properties when they are pcniranently withdrawD fro usc aod no fuore economic benelit is expected

from thcir disposal. Thc diffcrence betwc.n thc nct disposal procceds and thc carryin8 amount of the asset is rccognizcd in profit
or loss in the pcriod of de-rccogrition.

Reclassification from /to inveslrnent propcrty Transfers (o (or from) invcstnmt propcrty a.e made only when there is a changc in
use, Transfers betwecn invesfir€nt property, owncr-occupied propcrty and inventories do not change the carrying amotrnt of the

property lransfcrrcd and thcy do nol changc thc cost of ihat property for mcasurcnrcn( or disclo6ure puposcs.

(g) lEDrirm.rt

A. Fimrci.l rsscts

oflow

:lN I !a'l1
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If owncrship of lhe leased assct transfers to th€ Company al the end ofthe Icasc lcrm or the cosl reoects the €xercise ofa purchase

option, depreciation is calculaled using th€ estimated usctul life of the asset.

The righlof-us€ assets arc also subjec( to impairment.

B. Lerse lirbiliti€s
At thc cofifnmcement date ofthe lease, the Company r€cognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of leas€ payments

to bc madc ov€r thc lcas€ lcrm. The lease payments includc fixed paymenb (includinS in substancc fixed paymen6) less any lcase

inccDrivcs rcccivablc, variablc lcasc paynmts that dcpcnd on aD indcx or a rarc, and aDouDts cxpcctcd to bc paid undcr rcsidual
valuc guarante.s- Thc l€3sc payments also include the cxercise price ofa purchase option reasonably cerlain to be exerciscd by
the Company and paynenls of penalties for lerminating the lease, iflhe lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to
terminate. Variablc lcasc prymcnts that do noi dcpcnd on in index or a ratc arc recognised as expcnscs (unlcss they are incurrcd

to produce inventories) in the period in which the cvcnt or condition thal triggcrs the paymcnt occurs-

In calculating the prcsmt r"lue of l€as€ paymcnts, the Company uses ils incremcntal borrowing rate al the lease commencement

datc because the inrercst ratc implicit in thc lcasc is not readily dctcrminablc. Afler dre cornncnccmml date, the amount of lcasc

Iiabiliries is increased to reflect the accretion of intercst and reduced for thc lcase paymcnls made. In addition, the carrying

amount of lcasc liabilitics is rcmcasured ifthe.c is a modification, a changc in thc lcase term, a changc in lhc l€asc paymEnts (c.9.,

changes to future payments resulting from a chanSc in an index or rate used to detennine such lease payments) or a change in lhe

assessment ofan opliorl to purchase th€ underlying asset.

C- Short-tarm lcasas and lerses of low-vrluc rsscla

The Company applies the short-term lcase recognition cx.nption ro its shorl-rcrm lcescs i.€., lhose leases lhat have a lease term of
| 2 months or less from fie commencemenl alat. and do nor conlain a purchasc optiotr. It also applies the leas€ of low-valu€ asscts

rccognition exemption to lcases that arc considcrcd lo bc low value. Leasc paymcnts on sho(-term lcases and lcascs of low-value

assets are rccogrisd as cxpense on a straiSht-line basis ovcr thc lease torm.

wh€rc tha Comprny la the lesror

Lcas€s in which thc Company does not transfd Eubstantially all lhc risks and rcwards incidcntal to ownership of thc asset are

clessificd as opcrating lc1s6. Ass€6 subject to operatinS lcases arc includd un(kr IN6Enc propcrty.

l,casc income fiom opemring lcase is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the rclellant le3se including lease income

on fair \alue ofrefundablc s€curity deposits, unless thc lease ageement cxplicitly statcs that incr€as€ is on account of inflation.
Cos6, including deprcciation, arc recognized as an cxpcnse in the solcmcDt of profit and loss. Inilial direct costs inculrcd in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are add€d to the carryinS amount of lhe lesed assei and recognised over the lease

term on the same basis as rental income,

(l) Borrowtrg co6a.
Bormwing costs coirsis( of intlrcst ald othcr co6ts that an mtity inc1lrs in conDcctioo with lhc botrowing of fr$ds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a. assct that nccessarily takcs a substantial
pcriod of lime to 8et rcady for ils intmded usc or sale are c.pitalized/invcntorised as part of thc cost of the respective asset. All
oth.r borrowing cosls arc charged to statement of profit and loss.

The CompaDy keats as pan ofgeneral borowings any borrowing originally made to develop a qualirying asset when substantially
Bll ofthc .ctivities ncccss!ry to prepare that assct for its intended use or sale are complete.

aDt\-

A. Righl-of-use .ss€ts
The Company recognises righl-of-us€ assets at the commencement date ofth. lease (i.e., the date the und€rlying asset is available
for use)- Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulatcd depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of l€ase liabili(ies. The cost ofright-of-use assets includes thc amount oflease liabililies recognised, initial direct
costs incurrc4 and l.asc palments made al or bcfor. lhc comrnenccmcnt datc less aDy lcase inccntivcs receivcd. Right-of-usc
assc6 are depr€ciated on a slraight-line basis over thc shoner of the leas€ rerm and the estimated useful lives ofthe ass€ts.
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(j) Irventories
Direct expenditur€ relating to real estate activity is inventorised. Other expenditure (including bonorving costs) during
construction period is inventorised to the extent the expenditure is directly atributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition lbr its intended use. Other expcnditure (including borrowing costs) ircurred during the construction period which is not
directly attributable tbr bringing the asset to its \r'orking condition for its intended rNe is charged to the statement of prolit and
loss. Direct and other expenditure is determincd based on specific identification to thc real estate activity.

i. Work-in-progrcss: Reprcsents cost incured in rcsFct ofunsold area (inchrding lalld) ofthe real csnte developmcnt projects or
cost ircurred on projects Nhcre the relenue is yet to bc recognized. Work-in-ptogrcss is valucd at lowcr ofcost and nct realizable
value.

ii. Finished goods - Stock ofFlats: Valued at lower ofcost and net realizable valuc.

iii. Raw materials, componcnts and slores: Valucd at lower of cost and nct realizable value. Cost is determined based on FIFO
basis.

iv. Land stock: Valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value.

Net realizable value is thc cstimatcd selling price in the ordinary couse of business. less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(k) Land
Advances paid by thc Company to the seller/ intcrmediaD, to\ryard outright purchasc of land is recogtized as land advance under
other assets during the cours€ ofobtairing clcar and marketable title, free from all c[cunrbrances a d transfer oflegal title to the
Company, whereupon it is transferrcd to land stock under inventorics/ capital work in progrcss.

Land/ development rights reccived underjoint (lcvelopment arangemens ('JDA') is mcasured at the t'air value ofthe estimated

construction service rendered to the land owner and the same is accounted on lairnch of the project. The amount of non-

refundable deposit paid by thc Company under JDA is rccognized as land advancc under olher ass€ls and on thc launch of the
project, thc non-rcfundable anlount is transferrcd as land cost to work-in-progrcsv capilal work in progress. Funhcr. the amount

ofrefundable deposit paid by the Company undcr JDA is rccognized as deposit-s undcr loans.

For contiacts involving sale ofreal eslate unit, the Conrpaoy receivcs the considcration in accordatce vith thc tcrms of the
contract in proF,ortion of thc pcrcentagc of conrplction of such real estate project alrd represents payncnls made by cLstomers to
securc perlomrance obliSation of the Compan)' under the contmct gnforceable by customcrs. Such considcration is rcceived and
ulilised for specific rcal cstatc ptojects in accordance \!ith the requircments ol tllc Real Estate (Regulation and Development)
Act,2016. Consequently, the Company has concluded that such contracts \vith customers do no 'e any financi,rB clement

ol]lir
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since the same arises for reasons explained above. $hich is other than ior provisioll oflinan

(l) Revenue recognition
A. Rev€nue recognition
a, (i) Reveoue from contrrcts $ith customers

Revtnue from contracts rvith customers is recogniscd \vhen conkol ofthe goods or serviccs are transferred to thc customcr at an

amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expccts to be entitlcd in exchange for lhose goods or scrvices.
Revenue is measurcd bascd on the transaction pricc, rvhich is thc consideration. adjusted for discounts and othcr credits, if any, as

specilied in the conract with the customer. The Company prcsen6 revenue from contracls with customers net of indircct t&yes in
its statemont ofprotit ard loss.

The Company considers [hether thcre are other promises in the contract that arc separate performance obligations to which a
portion ofthe transaction price needs to be allocated. In detcrmining fte transaction price, the Company considers the effects of
variable consideration. thc existence of significant flnancing components, noncaslt considcration, and consideration payable to
$e cuslomer, ifany.

Revenue ftom real cstate development of residcntial unit is recognised at the point in time, whcn thc control of the assct is

transfcrred to (he customcr. which generally coincidcs u ith transfer of phlsical possession of thc residential unit to lhe customcr
ie., handover/ dcemed handover of drc residential units.

Rcvcnue consists ol sale of undivided share of land and constructed arca to the customer, \\'hich have been identified by the
Company as a single perfomrance obligation, as they arc highly intorrclated,/ interdcpendcnt.

Thc pcrformance obliSation in rclation to roal estate devclopment is satisfied upon completion of project work and transfer of
control ofthe asset to the customer.
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Funher. for prqccts executed rhrough joint developmcnl arrangements not being jointly conlrolled operations. whcrein the Iand

owner/possessor provides land and lhe Company underlakes to dev€lop propertics on such land and in lieu of land owner
providing land, the Company has agreed to transfer cenain percenlage of construcled area or cenain p€rc€nLge of lhe revenue

procceds, thc r€vcnue from thc dcvclopmant and transfer of construcled area/ ,eveoue sharing arangemml in cxcba[g€ of such

development rights/ land is being accounted on gross basis on launch oftlle project. Revenu€ is recognised over time using input
method, on the basis of the inputs to th€ satisfaction of a p€rformance obligalion relalive to the total expected inputs to the

satisfaction of that perfonnancc obli8alion.

fie revenue is mcasued al rh. fair r?luc of the land rcccivc4 adjusted by the amou[t of any cash or cash cquivalcnts transfcrred.

wherl (he fair value of thc land rcceived cannot be mcasured reliably, the reveoue is measured at the fair value of (he estirnated

construction scrvice rendercd to thc land owner, adjusted by the amount ofany cash or cash equivalents transfcned. The fair r.?luc

so estimatcd is considercd as thc cost of land in thc computation of pcrccnlage of completion for lhc purpose oI revenuc

recognition as discussed above.

scrviccs to rhc cll3tomcr, a contract liability is rccogniscd when thc paymmt is rnadc or thc plyment is due is earlier)

Contract liabilities are recogniscd as revenue when the Company perforlrls under the contract. Ll ..\- o
\-

,.-..-

Recognilion ofr.vcnuc from s.lc ofl.rd rrd devclopm.trt rights:
Rcvenue from salc of land and dcvclopment rights is rccogniscd upon transfer ofall sigDificant risks and rewards of owrcrship of
such rcal estatc/property, as per the terms ofthe contracls entered into with buyers, which generally coincides wiih lhe firminS of
the sales conlracts/agrecmenls. Revenue from sale ofland and d€velopment rights is only recognised when transfer of legal titlc lo
the buycr is not a coodition preccdmt for transfer ofsi8nificant risks and rcwards ofownership lo the buycr.

Recognition ofrcvenuc from lnlcdor *orks rnd srle ofconcr€te products.nd 5cr.D:
Revenue is recognised when control ofthe goods arc transferred lo the cuslomer at an amount that reflects the considemtion to
which th€ Company expccb to be entitled in exchanSe for 6ose gmds. Revcnue excludes indircct taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discou s.

Recognition ofrcvcnuc from mrlntenrnce rnd other services:
Rcvcnuc in rcspccl ofmaintenancc scrvices and othcr sewices is rcco$iscd on an accrual basis, in accordancc with lhe iefms of
the respective contact as and when the Company satisfies performance obligations by delivering the services as pet conraclual
agreed terms.

Incom€ from Property Dcvclopmrnt:
The Company has determined that the existing lerms of the contact with customers does not meet the criteria to recognisc

revenue over a period of timc, Revenue is .ecognized at point in lime with respe.l to contacts for salc of residential and

cornmercial units as and when the control is passcd on to the customcrs which is linkcd to the application and receipl of
occupancy ce(ificate.

Srle of Mrt.rirl., Lrnd.nd D.vclopmcnt Rights:
Rcvenue is rccognicd at point in timc with respcct to contracts for sale of Materials, lffd aDd Dcvclopmcnt fughts as ard when

the control is passcd on to the customers.

.. (ii) Cortrrct b.l.rccs
Coitracr rssct is tbc right to considcration in cxchangc for goods or scrviccs trarxferrcd to tbc customcr. If lhc Company perfonis

by transfcrring g@ds or sewices to a customer beforc lhe customcr pays considcration or beforc pa)ment is dua, a coDEact asset

is recogniscd for fie eamcd considcration that is €onditional.

Tmde receivable represents the Company's right to an amounl ofconsideralion that is unconditional (i.e., only thc passage of time

is required beforc payment of the coNideration is due).

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or sdvices to a cuslomer for which thc Compa[y has rccrived considcralion
(or an amount ofconsidcration is duc) from rhc cusromcr. Ifa customcr pays considcration bcforc thc Company transfcrs goods or

t
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!. (lii) Cosl lo obtain r contrrcl
Thc Company recognises as an assct thc incremental costs of obtainin8 a contract with a customer if the Company cxpccts to
recover those costs- The Compaoy incurs costs such as salcs commission when it enlers inlo a new contract- which are direclly
relared to winning the conrracr. The asser recognised is amo(ised on a systematic basis thar is consistent with the transfcr to the

customcr of thc goods or services to which thc asset rclatcs.

b. Larse lncome
Thc Company's policy for rccognilion of reveDuc from opcrating lcas€s is describcd in notc ?.2(h).

c. Shrre In profit/ loss ofLimitcd LirbilitJ Prrtnerships ("LLPS") rnd p.rrtnership firm
Thc Compaoy's share in prollts/losscs from LLPS and panDcrship fi.m, where th. Company is a partncr, is rccogniscd as

incomc/loss in the statement ofprofit and loss as and when thc right to receive its profit/ loss share is establish€d by the Company

in accordance with the terms ofcontract betw€en the Company and the pannership entity.

B. Oth.r Incoma
r. Intaraat income

lntcrcst iocome, including incomc arising fiom other financial instrumflts mcasurcd al arDrtised cost, is rccogniscd using the

effc.tiv. intcrest r.tc melhod.

b. Dividcnd itrcome

Rcvenue is recogused when the Company's right to reccive dividend is eslablishcd, which is generally when shareholders

approvc thc dividend.

(m) Foralgn curremy lr.n3lrtlor
Frnctionrl and prescntatioD culrcncy ;

Itcrns includ.d in rhe financial slatcmcnts of thc Company arc mcasured using the currcncy of the primary cccmomic cnviro nent

in which rhc Company operalcs ('the fiDctional c1lfrency'). Thc financial statcmcnb arc presentcd in Indhn rupcc (tNR / t),
whiah is thc Company's firnctional atrd prcsc[tatioo cundrcy.

Forelgr currelrcy trrnsrctlons rnd brlances

A. Inithl rccognition - Forcign currcncy tfimsactions arc r.corded in thc rcponing currcncy, by applying to lhc forcign currcncy

amount thc €xchange rate bctwim (he repodng cunency and ihc forcign curency at the date of the transaction.

B. Coovcrrioo - Foreign currcncy monetary iterns are rctr $latcd using the erchangc ratc pre!'dilirg at the reponinS date. Non-
monctary itcrns, which arc mcasurcd in tctrns of historical cost denominatcd in a forcign curency, ar,r rcponcd using the

cxchanta rat. ai th. dalc of lhc tnnsaction. Non-monctary itcms, which ara mcasucd al faia value or othcr similar valuation

denominrt.d in . for€ign cuncncy, arc translated using the exchange rate at thc datc vrhcn such value was determin.d.

C. Erch.trgc ditfcrcrccs - Thc Company accounts for cxchangc diffcrcnccs arising on translatior/ sculcrncnt of forcign currmcy
rnon lary itcms as income or as cxpcnse in the period in which thcy arise.

(n) R.tlr.ment rnd other .mployc. bcnerlts

Rctircmcnt bcnefits in the form of stste govemed Employcc kovideDt Fund and Employec State Insurance are defined

confibution schemes (coll€ctivcly lhc 'Schenes'). The Company has no obligation, other fian the contn'bution payablc to lhe
Schcmcs. Thc Company rccotnizas contribution payablc to lhc Schemes as expcndin,Ie, whcn an employcc rcndcrs thc rclated

scflicc. Ti. contribution paid in cxccss of amount duc is rccogni2cd as an asset and the contribution due in exccss of arnount paid

is recognized as a liability.

Graluily, which is a defined bencfit plan, is accrucd based on an indep€ndent actuarial valuatior\ which is done bascd on project

unit crcdit method es at th€ balancc shcct datc. The Company rccognizes the nel obligation ofa defin€d benefit plan in its balance

shect as an asset or liability. Gains and loss6 lhrouSh rc-mcasurcrncnts ofthe net dcfincd bcncfit liability/ (asset) arc rccognizcd
in other comprchensive income. ln accordance wilh Ind AS, rc'mcasurement gains and losses on dcfined benefit plans r.cognized
in OCI arc nol to bc subscqumtly rcclassificd to slatcmcnt ofprofil ind loss. As rcquircd undcr Ind AS compliant Schcdulc III,
the Company recognizes re-mcasurement gains and losses on dcfined ben€fit plans (net of tax) lo retained eamings-

Th€ Cornpany trcals accumulat.d lcave expectd to be carricd forward beyond twelvc months. as long-t€rm employec benefit for
measurcmcnt purposes. Such lonS-term compensaled abscnces are provided for bascd on the actuarial valuation using the
projcclcd unit credit metho4 made at thc end ofeact financial y€ar. Actuarial gainsnosses are immediarely taken lo the stalement
of profit and loss- Thc Company prcscnts th. accumulatcd l€ve liability .s a currcnt liability in
not bavc a! uncondition l right to dcfcr its scttlcmcDt for twclvc rDooths after thc rcponing datc.
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(o) lncome rexcs
Income tax expense comprises current tax €xpcnse and the nel change in the defened tax asset or liabilityduring lhe year.

Current and defcred tax are recognized in thc statement ofprofit and loss, except when thcy relate to items thar are recoSniz.d in
olher comprehensive incom€ or directly in cqurty, in which case, the cunent and deferred lax are also recognized in other
comprehensivc income or dirccdy in equity, respcctively.

A. Curr€nt income lu
Current income lax assets and liabilities arc mcasEed al rhc amount cxpcct.d io b€ recovcred from or paid to the laxation
aulhorilies. The tax rates and tax laws used to compule the amount are those that are macted or substantively enacted. at lhe
reponing dale wh.re th€ Company opemles and generates taxable income.

Cunent incomc lax relatitrg to ildDs rccogDiscd outsidc profit or loss is rc.ognised oulside profit or loss (either in other
compreh€nsiv€ income or in cquity). Curent lax items are recognised in conclation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity. Managemcnl p€riodically ev.luates posilions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which
applicable tax rcgulations are subjcct to interprctarion and considers whethcr it is probablc thar a raxation autho;tywill acccpt an

uncerlain tax Eeatrnmt. The company shall rcfl.d the eflect of uncertainty for each uncenain tax Eeatment by using either most
Iikcly method or cxpccted valuc mcthod, depending on which mcthod predicls better resolution of the trcatment.

B. Deferred incoDe t.x
Defcred income tax is recognized usin8 lhe balancc sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary differenccs at the

balancc sheet dalc betweeo thc isx bases of asscts and liabilities and their carrying amormts for financial repodng purpos€s,

cxccpt when thc dcfened incomc iax arises from the initial rccognition of goodwill or an assct or liability in a transaction that is

nol a business combinalion and affects neilher accounting nor taxable profit or loss at lhc timc of the transaction.

Defcred incom€ tax ass€ts are recognized for all dedtclible temporary diff.r.nces, carry forward of unused tax ctedib and

unuscd tax losscs, to lhc exlcnt that ir is probablc that taxablc profir will bc arrilablc against which thc dcductiblc tcrnporary

diffcrences, and the carry forward ofunused tax credils and unused lar l6ses can b€ utilized.

The canying amounl of defen€d income lax assets is re\ic\r'ed at each balancc sheet dalc alld reduced to thc crt€nt thal il is no

longerprobablc that sufficient taxablc profitwill be availablc ro allow all or part ofthe dcfcncd income tax asscl to bc utilized.

Delerred income tax assets and liabilities are mcasured at the tax rates (hat are expected to apply in the period when the assct is

r.alizcd or thc liability is settlcd, based on tax mt.s (a!d tax laws) that havc bccn cnactcd or substantively cnacted at thc balaDce

sheel date.

Defcrred tax .elating to irems recognised oulsidc profit or loss is recognis.d outside profit or loss (either in other comprchensive

income or in equity) in correlation to theuodcrlying transaction either in OCI or in equity.

Minimum Altemat. Tax (MAT) credit is recogniscd as an asset only when and to the extent thcr€ is convincing evidenc€ that lhe

Company *ill pay normal tax during the specified pcriod. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheel date and lhe cstryinS

amount of thc MAT crcdit assct is writtcE down lo thc .xtcnt thcr. is oo loDgcr a convincing c\ideDcc to thc cffcct that the

Company will pay normal tax durinS thc specified p6iod. ln the same way, Ahefllatc Minimum Ta\ (AMT) is recognised for
LLP.

(p) Provision, .nd contitrgent lkbllltles

A provision is rccognized whcn thc Company has a present obligation (lcgal or consmctivc) as a result of past event, it is

probable that an oudlow ofrcsourccs embodying ccommic bcnefib will be requircd !o sdtlc the obligalion and a rtliable cstirnate

can bc mad. ofthc &Doutrt offic obligatioo. If thc cff.d ofthc timc value of moncy is matcrial, provisions .rc discountcd using a

cunent pre-tax rate that refl€cts, wh€n appropriatc, the risks specific to lhe liability. When discounting is usg4 the increasc in the

provision duc to thc passage of time is recognizcd as a hnance cost.

A contingcnt liability is a possible obligation that ariscs fiom past cveots and whosc cxistcncc will be confirmed only by thc
occurrenca or non-occllrrcncc of one or morc unccrtain futurc even6 not wholly within thc control of the Company or a present

obliSation &at is not rccognizcd bccausc it is not probablc lhat an outflow ofrcsources will be rcquired to settlc the obliSatioo. A
contingcnt liability also ariscs in cxlrcEaly ffic cas.s wh.rc thcrc is a liability that ca&ot bc rccognizcd bccausc it cannot be
mcasurcd reliably. Thc Company do.s not rccognizc a contingcnt li.bility but discloses it io the unless the
possibility of .n outflo* of resourccs cmMying cconomic bcnefits is rcInotc. D8 rl
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Notes to finrnci.l strtemerts for the year cnded 3l M.rch 2024
(l u,nou s rc in Milliohs, unle\s othet\tisc stded)

Ifthc Company has a contract that is oncrous, lhc prcscnt obligation under thc contract is rc.oSnised and nNasurcd as a provision.
However, before a separate provision for an onerous contmct is cstablished. ihc Company recognises any impnirment loss rhat has

occurred on ass.ts dcdicared to rhat contmcr.

A continger( assct is a possible asset that ariscs from pasi cvcnts and whosc cxist.acc will bc co irmed only by the occurrcnce or
non-occrrrence ofone or more uncertain fulure evenls not \f,holly within thc control ofthe cntity-

Conlingenl asscls arc ncither rccognised nor discloscd axcrpt when realisatioo of incomc is virtually cenain. related asset is
disclosed.

(q) Finrncirl Inslruments

A financial instrumcnt is any contract that gi\-6 ns. to a financial assel ofone cntity 6nd a financial liabilrty or equity instrumcnt

ofanother entity.
lnitirl recognitlon rnd lnersurement

Financial assels and liabilities arc inilially mcasur.d a! fair value. lrade .eccivablchade payablc that do not conlain a significant
financing componcnt are mcasurcd at lransaction value and investment in subsidiaries arc mcasured al costing accordancc wilh
Ind AS 27 - scparalc linancial stalemcnt.

Subsequent hersuremant: Non-derivative fi nancial instruments

A. Flnrrcirl .licts crrried .t .mortised cost
A financial assct is subsequently mesurcd ar amortised cost if ir is held within a business nrcdel whose objective is to hold lhe

assd in order to coll.cl conlractual cash flows and the contracrual t€rms oflhc financial assct giv€ rise on specifi€d datcs lo cash

flows that ar€ solcly paymcn6 of principal and intcrcst on lhc principal amount oubtanding.

B. Fihrhcirl assels at frir vrluc through other comprehansive income

Financial assets arc measured al fair \6lue through olher comprehensive incomc if$ese financial assets are held within a business

whose objectrve is achieved by both collecting conrractual cash flo*s and sclling financial asseb and thc contmctual tcrms ofthe
linancial asset give rise on specitied dates to cash flows that are solely paym€nts ofprincipal and intercst on the principal amount

oulslanding.

C. Finrnci.l rsscts rt frir vrlue through profia or lo6s

Financial asscts arc measured al fair value $rough profit or loss unless il is measured al amottized cost or at fair valuc lhrough

olhcr comprehcnsive income on initial recognition.

D- D€hi ihstrurn.nts rt rmortlz.d cost

A 'debt instrumcnt' is mqsurcd at the amortizcd cost if both thc following condilions are met:

i. The asset is held within a busincss model whose objectivc is to hold assets for collecling contractual cash flows, and

ii. Conlractual t.rms of the asset give rise oo specified dates to cash flows thal are solcly payments of principal and intercst

(SPPI) oD thc principal amoun( outslandiDg.

After initial m.asurcrnen! such financial assets are subsequmtly measured at arnortized cost using the effeclive inleresl ral€ (EIR)

mcthod. Amortized cost is calculatcd by laking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fe€s or costs that are an

intcgral pan of thc EIR The EIR amodzation is included in finance incomc in tbe profit or loss. Thc losscs arisinS from

impairment arc rccognized in thc profit or loss. This category gcncrally applics to tsade and other receivables.

E. lIvcstrtratra h subiidirriei,Joint vetrtur.s d rssocirt.r
lnvcsment in subsidi.ries, joiflt ventures ard associates arc carried at cost. Impairment rccognizod, if any, is reduced from the

carrying Eluc,

F, De.racognldon of lirrnaitl ..iet
Thc Company dcrccognizcs a fuEDcial assct wh.n thc contractual righls to thc cash flows from the financial assct cxpirc or it
transfcrs lhe financial asset and thc ts nsfer qualifics for dc-rccognition under Ind AS 109.

o8
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Danub Homes Prir.te Limited
Notes to finrncial st.tcrnents for lhc yc.r ended 3l M.rch 2024
(-4ll ant,ons nru in Milltons, unlcss otheryise sttt!l)

C. Finrncial lirbililies
Initirl r€cognilion.nd mersurement

Financial liabiliriG are classified, al initial recognirion. as financial liabililies al fair value throuSh profit or loss. loans and

bonowings. or as payables, as appropriate- Thc Company's financial liabilities include lrad€ and other payables, loans and

bonowings including bank overdrafu. The subscqucnt measurcmcnt offinancial liabililies depcnds on their classification, which
is described below.

Subsequent mc.surement: Non-derivative fi nancial instrumcnts

H. Fin.nchl lirbilide3 at frir vrluc through proflt or loss

Financial liabilities at fair !"lu€ through profit or loss includc financial liabilities hcld for trading and financial liabilities

d€signated upon initial rccognition as al faar r'alue lhrough profit or loss. Financial liabilitid are classified as held for trading if
they arc incurrcd for thc purpose ofrcpurchasing in the ncar lcrm.

I. Fimhci.l lirbilities rt rhortized cost

Financial liabilides arc subsequently measured at arnortized cost using the effective interest ('EIR') method. Gains and losses are

rccognizcd in profit or loss whcn thc liabilirics arc derecognizcd as wcll as through thc EIR amortizalion process. Amodzed cosl

is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral pan ofthe EIR.

The EIR amortization is includcd as finance cosls in the statcmcn( ofprofit and loss.

IC Fair ralu€ mr.atramart
Fair value is rhe price that would be reEeived to sell an asset or paid to transfera liability in an ord€rly transaction b€tween markel

panicipanls ar the measurement date. The fair lalue mqsurement is based on the presumption that the lransaction to sell the assel

or transfcr thc liability takes place cilhcr:

) In the principal markcl for the asset or liability, or
>Io the absence ofa principal markel. in the mosl advantageous market for lhe asset or liability
The principal or the most advanlagcous rnarkct must be acccssiblc by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measurcd using the assumptions that market participants would use whm pricing the

.ssct or liabiliry, sssunring drat nurkd panicipaols acl in thcir ccorcmic bcsl iDlerest.

A fair valuc mcasrrcmcnt of a non-financial assc! lakes into account a markd participant's ability lo geneErle cconomic benefits

by using the asset in ils highest and bcst use or by sclling it to anothq rMrke! panicipanl lhat would use the assct in ils hiShest

and bcst usc.

The Company uscs raluatioo techniqucs that arc appropriatc in thc circurnstances and fot *hich surficient data are a ilable to

measure fair valuc, maximising thc usc of relevant obsembtc inpu6 and minimising thc use ofunobsdvable inpuls.

ln determining thc fair value of its financial instrumcnts, the Company uscs following hicrarchy and assurnptions that are bascd

on rnarket conditions and risks cxisting at cach reporring date.

L, Frir v.lue hierrrchyl
All asscts and liabilitics for which fair valuc is measured or disclosed in fie fiDancial statements arc categorizcd within the fair
value hicrarchy, dcscribcd as follows, based on the lowcst lcvcl input that is significant to thc fair r-dluc measrrcrnent as a who,c:

Lvcl I - Quotcd (unadjusted) nu*el prices in aclive malkcts for identical asscts or liabililies
Iavel 2 Valuation tcchniques for which lhe lowest level input that is si8lificant to thc fair valuc mcasurcmcnt is drrectly or
indirectly observable

Lcvel 3 - Valuation tcchniqucs for which the lowest levcl inpul lhat is significant to the fair rzluc mcasucrnenl is unobservablc

For assets and liabilitics that arc rccognizcd in thc firraDcial statcmcnts on a rcculring b6sis, thc Corupaoy dctcrmincs wbcth.r
ransfers havc occurrcd bctween l.vcls in the hicrarchy by rc-asscssing catcSorization (bascd on lhc lowest lcvcl input thal is

significant to the fair \Bluc measurcmcnt as a wholc) at the end of each r€poding pcriod.

For lhe purpose of fair value disclosues, thc Company has dctermined classcs of asscts and liabilities on thc
charactcristics and risks of thc asset or liabiljty and the level ofthc fair !?lue hierarchy as explained .bove.

iiN c161153
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J. De-recognitiob of linrtlci.l lirbility

A financial liability is derecognizcd when lhc obligation undcr the liability is discharged or canccllcd or cxpires. When an

existing financial liability is rcplaccd by another from the samc lmder on substantially different t€rrns. or the lerrns ofan existing

liability arr subsrantially rnodified, such an exchangc or moditication is tratcd as thc derecognition ofthe oriSinal liab;lity and

thc recognition of a ncw liability. Thc differencc in thc rcspcctive carr),rng amounls is recognizcd in the statcmcnt of profit or

loss.



Danub Homes Pritatc l,imi(cd
Notcs to financial slatcments for thc ye.r endcd 3l Mrrch 2024
(.411uDbutus are i M liu$, unleJlr otlkrttise sk ed)

(r) Cish dividcnd lo equity holders ofthe Comprny
The Company recognizes a liability ro make cash disrributions to equity holders of lhe Company \{hen the distribulion is

aulhorized and the distribution is no longer al the discretion ofthe Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability
on thc date of approval by the sharcholdcrs and intcrim dividcnds arc rccorded as a liability on rhc dale of declantion by the

Company's Board of Directors.

(s) Errnings Per Shrre
Bssic camiogs per share are calculated by dividing the n€t profit or loss for lh€ period attributable to equity shareholde$ by the

weightcd average numbcr of equity shares outstanding d'.ring the pcriod. Panly paid equity sharcs arc treated as ! Iiaclion of an

cquiry share to the cxtenr tlat thcy arc .ntitlcd to paniciFte in dividends relalive to a fully paid equily share during the reporting
period. Th. weighrcd average numbcr of cquity shares outstanding during the period is adjustcd for evmts such as bonus issue

that haye changed the number of equity shares outslanding, wilhout a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose ofcalculaling dilut.d camings per sharc, thc net profit or loss for th. p€riod attributable to equity shareholders

and (he weighled avcragc numbcr of $harcs oulstandin8 durinS the period are adjusled for th€ cffecls of all dilutive potential

cquiryshares.

(t) Crsh .nd crsh .quivrlelts
Thc Compary considcrs all higl y liquid financial instrumcnE, which 

'Ic 
rcadrly convcrtible into known amounls ofcash that ane

subjcct lo an insignificant risk of change in value a.d having original rnaturilies ofthrec oronlhs or lcss from the dal€ ofpurchase,

lo bc cash equivalents. Cash and cash cquival€nts consisl ofbalances wilh bank5 which src unrestricted for wilh&awal and usage.

(u) R.st.tem€nt
Thc Compaoy rcstat6 its f[arcial stat.rndts atrd prGcnts a opcning balancc shea as at thc beginning of th. prcccdilg pcriod if
it applies an accounring poliry rctrospcctively, males a retsospectivc rcslatemcnt of iten$ in its financial statcmcflts or

rcclassifies iterns in ils linancial sratcments ihat has a material c{Tect on thc information in the balancc shect at thc beginniog of
the prcccding pcriod.

The Company correcG matcrial prior penod errors rekospectivcly in thc first set offinancial statcmer6 approved for issue aft€r

thcir discovery by (a) reststing thc comparative amounls for thc prior pcriods prcsentcd in which th. cnor o.cutrcd; or (b) if the

enor occuned beforc lhe carliest prior period pr€sentcd, rdtating th. opening balanc€s of ass.ls, liabilities and equity for the

earlicst prior period pr.scnled.

(v) Sogmetrt repordtrE
[n accordance with lnd AS IOE OFrating Segment, lhc operating scgmmts used to prcsent s.gmcnl infomBtion arc identificd

on thc basis of information rEviewcd by thc Company's manatemcnt lo allocatc resources to the scglnents and asscss lheir

pe ormance. An opcriting segmcnt is a component of the Company that cngagcs in business activitias from which it eams

rcvenucs and incurs cxpctrscs, including rcvmues and expenses thst rclate to transactions with any of the Company's oiher

componmls. Rcrults of the opcmting scgm€nls are rcviewcd re$larly by lhc ManaginS Director who has been idcnlificd as the

chicf operating decision nnker (CODtv0, to rnakc alcrisions aboul rcsources to bc allocated to the scgmenl and asscss its

performance.

Prcscntly, thc Company is mgagcd iE only onc scgmcnt viz 'Re5l cstatc and allicd sctivitics' and as such thcrc is no scparatc

rcportable segmcnt as pcr Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments'. The Company has operations only within India.

Accordingly, thc segmcnt revenua, s€Bmcnt resuhs, lolal carrying amount of scgmcnt ass€ts and scgmcnt liability, total cost

incurrcd to acquirc s.gmcnt asscts and totrl arDol,ot of chargc for dcprcciatiotr during th. p€riod is as m fnancial

statemenls as of and for the year ended 3 I March 2024 /V
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2.3 Significrnl rccou nti ng j udgmen ts, estimrles r!|d rssumptiors
The prcparation of financial sraremcn6 requires manrgemert to mak€ judgmcnts, eslimates and assumptions thar affecr rhe

r€ported b.lances of revenues, exp€nses. assels and liabilities and tre accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure ofcontingBnt
Iiabililies. Uncenainty about these judgments. assumptions and estimates could result in oulcomes lliat require a material
adjuslmenl to the carryilg amount ofasscLs or liabililics affected iD fuore pcriods.

In thc process ofapplyiog thc Company's accounting policies, management m.kcs judgcmcnt, cstimarcs and assumptions uhich
have the most significant efiect on lhe amounts recognized in the financial statements.

The key judg.menrs, estimates and assumptions conceminB the futule and other key sourc€s of estimation unc€rtainty at the

reporting datc, that havc a significant risk of causing a matcrial adjustment to thc carrying amounts of assels and liabilities wilhin
the next financial year. are described bclow. The Cornpany based its judgements. assumptions and estimates on pammelers

availabl€ whcn the financial statcmmts wcrc prcparcd. Exisling circurDstanccs and assumptions about firture d.vclopmcn6,
however, may changc due to ma.ket chan8cs or circumstances arising that arc beyond the control of the Company- Such changes

are reflected in thc assumptions when they occur.

A) Revenuc from coDtrrcts witb customcrs

The Company applied the following judgemcn6 that significantly aIFecl the det€rmination of the amount and timing of revenue

from contracts with customers:

r. (i) Identificrrion of performrnce obligrtion

R€vmuc consis6 of sale of undivided sharc of land and constructed area to thc ctlstomer, \vhich havc bccn idcntified by lhe

Company as a single pcrformance obligation, as thcy are highly interrclalcd iot.rdepcndent. In ass€ssing whcther perforrnance

obligarions rclarirg to salc ofundividcd shar. of land and constsuctcd arla arc highly inlcnclat.d/ inlcrdcpendent, lhc Company

considers factors such as:

- whclher rhc custom.r could b€nefit fiom lhc undivided sharc of land or ihc constructcd arca on its own or logether wilh o6er
resources rcadily available to the customer.

, whethcr thc corirywill be able to firlfil its promise under the conEact, to Eansfcr thc udividcd sharc ofland withoul transfer of
construcled area or transfer the constsuct€d area withoul transfer of undivided share of land.

r. (il) Tlrning ofs.tisfrction ofperform.nc. obllgttlon
Revenuc from sal. of real €state units is re.ognised wheo (or as) conlrol ofsuch units is transf€rred to the custom6. The entity
asscsscs liming of transfcr of control of such uni6 to lhc c slomcrs as transfcrrcd ovcr limc ifone of the following critcria are

mel:

- Thc customcr sioultancously rcccivcs and consumrs lhc bcncfits providcd by thc cntity's performance as the cntity perfonrls.

- Thc cntity's pcrforrnance creates or enlunccs an assat that the customer controls as the asset is cre3tcd or eohancad.

- Thc sntity's peaformance does not crcatc an asset wilh an altcmstive usc io lhc cttity and lhe entity has an cnforceable riSht to
payme for pcdoniance completed to date.

Ifcontrol is oot transfcrr€d ovcr time as abovc, dre anlity considers the samc as transfcrcd al a poinl in lime,

For contracts where control is transferrcd at a point in timc the Company considcrs the following indicators of the transfer of
control of thE assct to the customer:

- Wlen the cntity oblains a prcscnt right to payrcnt for drc asscl
- Wlen thc cntity Fansfcrs lcgal title of lhc asset !o lha custorn€r.

- When thc cntity ransfcrs physical posscssion oflhc sssct to the custorncr.

- Wlen thc cnriry ransfcrs siBnificant risks and rcu,ards ofo*ncrship of the asset to th. customer.

- Whco thc cusiomcr has rcccptcd thc assct,

The aforcsaid indicators of transfcr of cootrol arc also considered for determination of thc timing of derecognit
propertY r)&
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c) Slgni{icrnt finrncing component

For contracts involving sale of real cslatc unit, lhc Company rcccives the considcralion in accordance wilh the tcrms of the

contracr in proportion ofthe percentage ofcompletion ofsuch real estate project and represents payments made by customers to

securc performance oblagation of the Company under lhe cont acl cnforceable by customers. Such consideration is rcceived and

uiliscd for specific real cstale projccts in accordarcc with the requircmcn6 oftbc Rcal Estarc (Rcgularioo and Development) Acl,
2016. Conscquently, the Company has concluded that such contracls with customers do not involve any financing element since

the same anses for rcasons explained sbove, which is other than for provisioo of finance to/from lhe customcr.

B. Chssificrtioh of propert)
The Company determincs wheder a property is classified as investment property or invcdtory as below.

Investment Foperty comprises land and buildiogs (principally omce and residential properlies) lhat are not occupied substantially

for usc by, or in thc operations of, thc Company, nor for s3le in thc ordinary couise of business, but are held primarily to e3m

rental income and capital apprecialion. These building/gs are substantially rcntcd to lcnanls and nol intmded lo bc sold in the

ordinary course of business.

Inventory compdses property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, this is residential and

commcrcial propcrty that the Company dcvelops and ifltends to s€ll beforc or dud[g the coursc of coDstruction or upon

completion of conslruction.

Estirnation ofnel.ealizable t?lue for inventory and land advance:

Inventory is stat€d at the lower ofcost and net realizablc value (NRV).

NRV for compl€lcd invcntory propcrry is assessed by rcfcrcnce to rnarkcl conditions and prices existing at the reporling date and

is detcmin€d by thc Company, based on comparablc tmnsactions identified by th€ Company for propertics in the same

gcogtaphical rnarkct scrving thc same rcal cstate scSmmt.

NRV in rcspect of invcntory propcrty u.der constructioo is asscsscd with refercncc to nlarket prices at th. reporting date for
similar complctcd property, less estimat.d costs to complete constsuction and an estimate of the time value of money to the datc

ofcomplction.

With rcspcct to land invcfltory and land advance givcn, thc nct recovcrable value is bas.d on thc presenl value of futurc cash

flows, which dcpends on the estimatc of, among othcr things, the likclihood that a prcjact will be complctc4 lhe expcctcd da(e ot
completion, the discount mtc used and lhe estimation of sale pdces and consruction costs.

C. lmpairmeut of Dor-fir.nci.l rsscts

Ihpairment cxisls whcn th€ c&rying value ofan .ssct or casb gendating unit €xcccds ils racoverablc amount" which is the higher

of its fair valuc less co6ls of disposal and its value in usc- Thc fair valuc lcss c6ls of disposal calculalion is based on available

data from binding sdcs traDsactions, conducted et arm's lcngth, for similar assds or obscnablc markct priccs lcss incrcmeDtal
cosls for disposing ofthe asset. The valuc in usc calculstion is bas€d on a DCF modcl. Thc cash flows are d€rived ftom thc budget
for (hc ncxt five yca.s and do not include restructurin8 activities that tic Company is not yet cornmitted to or significant futurc
invesEnents that will cnhance the asset's performanc. of the CGU being tested. Thc rccoverablc amount is sensitivc to thc
discount ratc uscd for thc IfF modcl as well as thc cxpcct d futur. cash-inflows and the growrh r.tc used for extrapolation
purpccs, Thes€ 6tinutc6 a,t mo6t rclcvant to disclo$re of fair valuc of invcstncnt propcrty recordcd by the

{,

{, crigti'l .

b) Accouhting for rer.nuc rnd lrnd cost for projects erecut€d through joint d.v.lopment rrr.ngcments ('JDA')
For projccls cxcculcd through joirr dcvclopmert arranScmcn6, thc Company has cvaluated that land ou'llcts arc not cngaged in
the samc line of business as the Company and hencc has concluded that such anangemen6 are conrracts with customers. The
revenuc from the development and transfer of constructed area/revenue sharing arangemmt and the conespooding land/
development rights rcceived under JDA is measured at lhe fair value of th. estimated consEuction service rendered to the land
orf,ncr and the same is accounled on launch of $e project. The fair value is estimaled with reference to lhe terms of the JDA
(whclhcr reverue shar. or ar.z shar€) aDd thc relalcd cost that is allocat.d to discharSc thc obligalion of thc Company under the

JDA. Fair value or rhe construction is considered 10 be thc representative fair value of the revenue rransaclion and land so

obtaincd. Such asscssmcnr is carricd out .t th€ Iaunch ofthc real estate project and is not reassessed at cach reporting period- The

ruDagcmcnt is of thc vicw that thc fair valuc method and cstimatcs ar. rcflcctivc of ihc curcDl markct condilion.



D2nub Homes Prir.t. l,imi!ed
No(es to finrncirl sl.t€ments for lhc ]e.r ended 3l M.rch 2024
(.411anounts urc in Millions, u l<ss oth.:tsi\e stuted)

D. Defin€d b€n€fit pl.ns - Gr2tuity
The cosr of the d€fincd benefi( gratuity plan and other posi-employment medical bcnefits and the present value of lhe gratuity

obligarion are dctcrmined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumplions thal may difler
fiom acrual dcvclopmcnLs in the funrc. Thcse include thc dcrcrmination of ftc discounl rale, futwc salary increases and monality
rates- Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and ils long-term nature, a defincd beoefil obligalion is highly sensilive lo

changes in these assumptions. All assumplions are reviewed al cach reponing date.

The parameter most subject to changc is the discount rate. [n determi8ing th€ appropriate discount rate for plans operated in lndia,

the manag€ment considcrs lhe interest rales of govemment bonds. The mo(ality rate is based on publicly available monalily

tablcs. Thosc mortality tables tend to changc only al int.rval in rcsponsc to dcmogmphic changes. Fulure salary incrcascs arc

based on expccled fulurc inf:alion rales and exp€cled salary incrcase th€reon.

E. Measuremenl oflihabairl inslruments rt rmortized cost

Financial instrument xrc subsequently measured at amo(ized cost using the effeclive ir|terest ('EIR') melhod. The compulalion of
amorrized cosa is scnsitive !o the inputs ro EIR including effcctivc rute ofintcrcst, contractual cash flows and the cxpcclcd lifc of
the financial instrumcnt. Changes in assumptions about thes€ inputs could affect the repo(ed value oflinancial instruments.

F. Us€ful lifG rbd rcsidurl v.luc of prop€rty, plrlrt .nd €qulpmen(
The usefirl tife and residurl value ofpropcny, plant and equipment is d€termined based on evalu.ation madc by the management of
the expect€d usage of the ass€t, the physical we3r and tear and technical or commercial obsolescerce of the asset. Due to the

judgemcDts iovolvcd iD such estirnatcs thc useful life and rcsidual valuc arc scnsitivc to the actual usage in future period.

G. Provision for lltlg.tiors and condngencies

Provision for liti8ations and co.lingencics is determincd bascd on evaluation made by the managcment ofthe prescnl obligalion

arising ftom past cvcnls the se(lement ofwhich is expected !o result in outflow ofresouces emMyrng economic benefits, which

involves judgemcflls around estimales the ultimate outcome ofsuch past events and measurement of the obligalion Due to

judgemenG iovolvcd in sucb estimation lhc pmvision is scnsilivc lo thc acNal outcomc ilr futur. p.nods- T]

/?
i) F::
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D,rnub Homes Privat€ Limited
Nores to Finrncial Srrtenrenrs for the yerr endcd March 31, 2024
(All omo@ls arc h Mllions, unbss othe isesk ?d)

3. ProperQ. pl.nt rnd equipmcnl

Compulcrs
Leasc Ilold

lmproYemcnts
Officc

trquipm(nt
Plsnt rnd

Machincry
Totrl

Cost

As.l April0l, 2022

Additions during the year

Disposals during the y€ar

As.l M.rch 31,2023
Addirioos during the year

Disposals during $e year

As rt March 31, 2024

Deprecirdon

A6 rt Aprfl 01, 2022

Dereciation chargc for the y€ar

Disposals during the year

As rt M.rch 31,2023
Dcprcciation chagc for lhc ycar

Disposals during thc ycar

As .t M.rch Jl, 2024

Ncl block

zl. Crpital n'ork in progrcss

A5 rt Mrrch 31.2023
As rt Mrrch 3I, 202,1

0.62

0.83

t.9s
2.69

Amounl in CWIP for. period of

l-2 ye.rs 2-3 ye.rs
Mor€ thih 3

vernt

0.88

0.5tt

I.89
0.51

2.71

1.09

t.46 7.10 3.E6

0.90 1.20 2 r0

2.36 3.60 5.96

0.29

0.55

0.36
0.93

0.E4 0..15

0.69 0.46 l 15

l.5l 0.9 t 2.44

2.51

3.52

Less th.n I Tohl

Ar rt April0l,2022
Projects in progrcss

Projecls temporarily suspended

Tot l

Ar rt Mrrch 31,2023
Projects in prcgrcss

Projccts tenporaily susp€nded

Tot.l

As.l M.rch 31,202,1
Projec6 in progrcss

Projccrs tcmporarily suspendcd

Totrl

17.26

17.16

C,

{iRN Cilj,115;

:-

0.07

0.3r

r.79

17.26

t1.16

:s



Danub Homes Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for thc ycar cndcd Mrrch 31, 2024

(.411 amo , s arc in liillions, unless olh?t1tis? staled)

4. Inrestments

i. Investments rt f.ir vrlue through Profit ,nd Losi
Quoted Mutual Funds

As at
March 31.2024

As at
M.r.h 31.2023

Nlutual Fund

Adiq? Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Growth Regulat Plar (formerly krown as Aditya
Birla Sun Life Cash Plus)

Mar 2024 - (Units - 4,590.33, NAV - 385.66/uni0

l.'17

Total Investments
Current
Non-Currenl

1.17

1.77

Aggregele book vrlue ofquoled investmells
Aggreg.te mrrket vrlue ofquoted investments

5. Lorns
(Unsecurcd considered good unless oth€rwise stated, measured at amortised cost)

1.71

1.77

As at
Mrrch 31,2024

As at
Nlarch 31,2023

LorBs to rel.ted p.rty
[.oan to related panies

[,oan to directors

Total loans carried rt rmortised cost

Current

Non-Current

6. Other linencirl rssctt
(Measuied at amortiscd cost)

1.951.55 t.606.72

___________l_95r1 ______.).6n!2
t.95t.55 1.606.72

As at As at
l\tarch 3l 2024 M.rch 3l 2023

Security deposit

Bank deposits with more th,m 12 months

lnterest accrued but aot due

lnterest accrued and due

Rcntal advancc

Totrl fiDrrcld hstrumerts rt.mordscd cost

CuIlent
Non-Curcot

7, Olhcr rssets

Advance to supplicrs
Advances for land contracts

Prepaid expenses

Totrl other $3ets
Current
Non Cuirent

636.46

18.89

297.96

3t.92

203.11

100.00

t.4l

As .t
2024 Mrrch 3l 2021

18.89

634.50

0.34

1.62

18.89

r 3.03

296.32

0.29

1.35

655.35 329.tE

As at
Mrrch 3

r a

f.qN,.:l'i5,113S

t1r ri:i il.i.1 5 104-54 243.83

243.83

143.76

100.00

0.07

,\ 3U.64



Danub Homes Private Limited
Notes to Finsncirl Statements for thc ycrr cnded March 31, 2024
(All ano nts arc i ilillions, less oth?rwis"

[i. Defcrred tar rrse(s (nct)/ Deferred ta\ liabililies (nrt)
As at

Nl.rch 31,2024 Nlarch 31,2023
D€f€rred ler li{bililies
Invcntory

Cross deferred tax li.bilities
566.42 t,279.27

570.12 r.284.79

Deferred trt rssett
Property, plant and equipmenl
Unearned revenue

Gross deferred lrr rssets

Nel dcferred tax asset(liabilities)

9.lnventories

0.34

394.63

o.32

r,386.30

394.97 1,386.62

015. 75) t0l.t3

As rt
M.rch 31.2024

As rt
Mrrch 31,2023

Work-in-progress

Raw materials, components and storcs

Land stock

Total iDventories {t the lower ofcost rnd net rcalisable value

10. Trade receiYrblas
(Unsecured. considered good)

4.43t.53
142.21

586.78

6.861.99

170.31

As at As at
IVarch 31 2024 March 3l 2023

Trade receivables

Receivables from other related palties

Trsde receivablcs sgeing schedule

90.45 235.68

l\tarch 3l 2024
As at

M.rch 31.2023
As at

Undisputed Tr.d€ Receivrble. - coDsidered good

Outstanding for following periods from duc date of payment

Curent but trot due

Less than 6 months

6 monlhs - I year

I -2 years

2-3 yean

Morc than 3 yeas
Tot l

ll. Cash rnd cssh equlvaletrts

Balanccs with bMLs:

- On curent accounts

- Deposits with original mahrity of less than thrcc monlhs
Cheques/ drafts on hand

Cash on hand

Total crsh and clsh equlvrlent

79.43

6.89

3.93

0.21

219.44

15.76

0.48

90.45

As .t As rt
March 31 2024 Mrrch 3l

41.84

13.88

235.68

2023

a)
'J-

FRii ci!.1i5S
a i..1E ti li A1- 1 { -z

0.t0

601.93

55.82 602.00

Cash at banls cams inlcrcsl at floating ratcs bascd on daily bank dcposit ralcs. Short-term daposiB arc riadc for varying pcriods of bctwecn
onc day alld thrce months, dcpcoding oo thc irnrnedialc cash requirarncnts of the Company, ard cam interest at the rcspcctive short-tcm
dcposit ratcs.

sc_. 0& C

___________!_q9!L ____-__lJ!2!!_

90.45 235.6E

0.07



Dinub l'lom€s Private t-imilcd
Nofus to Finenciel Ststcmcnts for the year endcd l\tarch 31, 2024
(.,1llanounts arc itr ltliltblrs. l/l,l.Js oth?r$is? stdtcd)

lUarch 3l 2024 lvarch 3l 202i
ln deposits accounts:
- original maturities more than three months and less dran 12 months

I eor marked accounts:
- Dividend accounts

- Balance held as margin money against guarantees given

Toirl other b.nk b.l.nce

lf. Current tax rsset (net)

2010

24.4t 44.95

45.t I 44,95

As et
IUarch 3l 2024 Mrrch 3l 2023

Advance tax

Provision for tax

Tol.l current t8x (net)

14. Equity share capital

r53.57
(172.71)

42.00
(107.22)

Equig shares of t 10 each

Number Amount

16s.22)

Detrils of shareholders holdittg more thrn 59l. sh.res rnd shrr€s

t0,000 0.10

__________t_aJ!0

Equity shrres of a l0 erch

Number Amount
b) Issued shrr€ crpitrl
At April0l,2022
Increase/(decrease) during fi e year

At Msrch 3I,2023
lncrease/(decrease) during the year

At Mrrch 31,2024

t0.000

10.000 0.10

00 0.r0

0.10

10.000

10,000 0.10

) 10.000

10.000 0.t0

oters in ihe Compstry
As rt

M.rch 31,2024
No. ofShrres oZ ofHoldirg

Equity shrrcs
Casa Grande Milestone Private Limited 9.900 99%

12. B:lnk balances olhcr th:rn cash rnd cash cqui\ alcnls

As at

09.14)

r) Authorised shrre crpitrl
As rt April0l,2022
Incrcasc(decrease) during the year

As .t Mrrch 31,2023
Increase/(decrease) during the y.ar
As rt Mrrch 31,2024

Ri8has, preferences rnd restrictiors rttached to the equity shrres
The Company has one class ofcquiry shares viz., regular cquity sharcs.

0.r0

Regular Equity sharcs : Thcsc cquity sharcs are having a par value of I I 0 per sharc. Each sharcholder is eligible for One vote p€r sharc held.

Tte dividend propos.d by thc board is subjcct to the approval ofthe sharcholders in the cnsuing Annual Gencral MeetinS, except in case of
interim dividend. ln the evcnr of liquidatioD, the equity shareholders are eligiblc to rcccivc thc remaioing assels of thc Company after

disribution of all prcfcrcntial amouot, in ploportion to their sharcholding.

0.10

0.10

c) P.id-up shrre c.pltrl
At Aprll0l,2022
Increase(decrease) dudng the year

A( M.rch 31,2023
Incrcase/(decrease) during thc ycar

At M.rch 31,2024

a

RN C16't1:
I

\



Danub Homes Privale l,imited
Notcs to Financial Stalcmcnts for thc year cndrd Nlarch 31, 2024

ll uno ,tts arc in Millio s, unless olh.nris? slalcd)

As rt
March 31.2023

No. ofShrrcs 9/. of tloldinq
Equity shrres
Casa Grande Milestone Private Limited

Details ofchangcs in (he promoters holdings

9,900 99%

As et As al
I\tarch 31 2024 lurrch 3l 2023

Equlty sh!res
Casa Grande Mileslone Private Limited
Casagrand Premier Builder Limited (Formerly known as Casagmnd Prcmier Builder Privete

As at As at

0%
00/o

0%
0v"

2023

0%
e/o

o%
0%

15. Other equity
Msrch 3l 2024 Mrrch 3l

r) R€trined errnings
opening
Add: Additions
I-€ss: Utilised/ transferrcd

Less : Transfer to Reserves

Clositrg

16, Borrowings

(r4.89)

974.51

(13.3r)

(r.58)

As at As at
Nlarch 31 2024 March 3l 2023

A) Non-currert borrowings

Secured

ii) Term Lornt
.) Frotn Banks

b) From other pcrties
From fi nancial institutions

iii) Vehicle lorns
From financial inslitutions

2,348.84 2,606.03

t2.t2

2,360.96 2,606.03

23.54

l13.82

3.99

,
259.06 100.35

-;!

400.4r 100.35

Unlimited dividend equity shares
Arun Mn
K.R-Anerudan

959.68 (14.8e)

Totrl non current borrowingl

B) CurrGD( borrowltrga
Sccured
i) Brrk overdr.fts / Crsh Credit

ii) Current m.turlty of loDg-term lo.!s
From banks

Dcbentures:
Vchicle loalls

Unsecured

i) Lorn repryrble on demrnd
Fmm related parties

Tot.l curr.trt BoEowings

c

__1 A



l)rnul, IIomrs Prilrlc Litnilcd
Notes lo financial Stat(r rnls for lhc ye!r rnded Itlsr.h .11. 2024

{All amouDts rre in Millions. rnlcss othcrryhe stated)

t0:.1 2\t12Irisburs.m

Mn Iln :un Mn

Borrowing Eniity: Daoub Homl:l Pnvalc Limilcd
Nltur. of sc.urity :

l. Propcrty: First and Exclusivc chargc by way ofmongage ovcr lhc hnd mcasuring approximately

14.97 acras al Perumbakkam with structures lhercon ("Projecl First City")
2. Stock & Rcccivablcs & Movcablc propcnies:

(i) Hypothecatior and cscrow of r€ccivablcs from thc salcs of sold/usold unils in thc Pmj€ct First
city.
(ii) Erta$ion ofexisting security on a firsl pari passu charge basis ov.r Prcjecls Utopia and Zenith

l. Pcrsonal GuaraDtee: Mr. AruE MN
4 .Corporalc Guaraotcc: C{sagznd Prsricr Buildcr Private Limit.d 1,738.85

JM
FiDancial

Crcdit
Solutions
Limited

2.050.00

Rcpaym€0t T€fms & Ratc of Inlercsl :

l. FaciliryT)"€: Sccurcd Tcrm loan faciliry a 2050.00Million
2. Tcnor & Moratorium: 60 Monlh tcnor from lfic date ofdisburs.mcnt Jun 2021, with 36 Month

of principal moratorium

3- Repalm€nr: 24 monthly Inslallrncot
4. Ratc oflntcrLst 15.00'l. P.A. Fixcd

Iran fo.ccloscd oo 03rd Oclob.r 2022

Bodo*ing Entity: Dalub Hom6 Pnvarc Limit.d
Naturc ofsccurity:
l. Propcrt),: Equilablc Mongag. ofcasagraod Firsr City proicct hnd owncd by lhc Applicant a.d
locatcd in Chcran Na8ar, P6umbakkam, Chenn.i bearing Cornpriscd in S. Nos. 470(Pan), 471 ,

4t2lt (pant,472t2 G'an\ & 476l I B of Pcrumbakkam Villasc, Tambaram Taluk, Ch cnnai alons wirh

construction thercon excluding OSR, Gift.d Portion and land & Salcablc ar.! alr.rdy conveltd.
(MODT to be registercd). R.Sistcred MODT/Chargc to include sold unrcsistcrEd unils as well.

2.Stock and Reeivables:
(i) Assignmcnt / Hpothccation of ,cccivablcs &om lhis proi.ci (Fn$ City)- (Subjcct to
applicability ofRERA)
(ii) Charge over Project Receivables ansing from lhc Proiccl .nd to b. dcposiad in the mas(er

RERA accorrnt opeocd by lhe Bonowcr vith thc Escrow Ageni-
(iii) Rcccivablcs ftom lhc pojcct "Casagr d CRESCENDO' of thc group compatry of thc

Company, rlamcly, Dawning DcvclopcB LLP cornpriscd in Sy. No6. 135/lC. ll5/28, 123/2Ct,
tls/z{, l23t2D [rr], 123/lB, t23nA2, 12312A2, l23ilcl [P/r], tBnC3 IYT), 122n4,
,2ylc2, tnnc\ l22t2B, l23ll{l & 123/2A1, situatcd in lNolanbur] Attipatlu village,
Amba$rr Taluk, lhcn Thiruvrllur districl, Now Chcmai Distsict, Tamil N.du.
3. CoQorat Guarsntce Casa Grandc Mil6tonc Pri t Linitcd & Casagrand Prcmier Buildcr

Privatc Limitcd.

2,r56.03

il

2

IJC
Housing

Finaoce
Umited

3,610.00

Rcpayn.ot Tcms & Ratc of Intcrcsl:

Total Frcility Amount { 3t00.00 Million
l. Tcfm of loan: 60 monlhs (includinS moratoriud period of 24 months) tom thc dale of first
disburs.m.trt Scp 2022.

2. Rcpaymcnt of lo3n priocipal: 36 monthly insalmcnB aacr complction of moGtorium pcriod of
24 moDths from thc datc of first disburs.mcrt cxcluding brok6 pcri.cd or 207o of daily salc
procccds to bc adjustcd tox/aris rcpayment ofPrincipal without rEpaymcnt chargcs Iiom all futurc
r.ccivlbl6 liorn thc prDjcct. UCtfL bascd oo thc salc inflow can incrclsc thc % to bc adjust.i
towards rhc lom ourstandinS sr any point oftimc. (whichcvcr is clrlicr or highcr ofthe above)

3. Principal Momtorium: 36 Months liom thc datc of lst disburlcmcnt (iolcresl on outstandinS

amounl paldlc dudng this pcriod)
4. Inrcr6r: payabl€ monrhly | 2.65% p.6. (Floating Etc)
5. Intcrcst Rasct: Bas.d on Proj.ct LHPLR minus sprcad of490 bps.

t,80r.02

2021

(:',



D.nul) llomes Priutc Limitcd
Noles lo Fin:rcial Stelemenls for lhc ]e.r cnded March 31, 2024
(All rhoutrli ire in Millions, urless olher$lse slrted)

Mr

2021 2[2] 2027

Irln Mn
Aml in

Mn

l

Morilal
oswal
Home

Limited

540.00

Borrowing Entiry: Da.ub Homes Privat€ Limitcd
Natur€ of Sc(urily :

l. Propcny: Firsl charSe oo undivided shar! of land brlongitrgs to Borow6's sharc. d.v€lopmcnt
rishrs .nd saleable ar€a ofbormwels share of rhc projecr "Casasrand Elinor"
2. Stock, Rcceivables & Movable propcrtics:
(i) Filst charsc on bonow€/s shar. of rcccivsbl.s md furur. cash flows ofrhc projccr
(ii) First charg€ on thc Project accounts as mcolion€d in thc Escrow agre€m€o!

3. Corporale Guarante€: Casagrand Premier Build€r Private Limrted 408.76 450.00

Rcpaymcnt Tcrms & Rat oflntcrest:
l. Facility Typc: Constuction finance term loan

Tolal Facility amounr { 600.00 Million
2. Final Mllurity: 48 moolhs (door lo door) sbning from first disbuscrncn( (31-Mar-27)

3. Rcpaymcnt: Rcpalabl. in 4 cqual instalmcits strning from thc last day of39th month liom lbc
datc of first invcstrn€nt
4. Inlcrcsl Ratc: I 3% p.a. mo{lhly compoundin8 snd paFblc quancrty

Motilal
Oswal
Home

Limitcd

3r 3.00

Borrowing Entity: fhnub Homes Privrte Limit.d
Naturc of Sccurity :

l. Ropcny: Exclusivc charSc on projcct land siiuatcd at KarBnai Village admcasuring 76,813 Sq ft.

and salcablc arca of332,290 Sq. n. in Projcct "Cassgrand Aspircs"

2. Stock & Receivabl€s: Hyporhecation ofschcduled rcceivables ofbolh sold and unsold units of
Projcd'CasaSrand Aspires'
3. Co- Borrow€ri Casa Grandc Milcslon.s Privatc Limit.d & Casagrand Prctrticr Buildc, Lirnilcd

1t9.06

Rcpalrncnt T.rms & Ral. oflntcrcst :

l. Faciliry T}!c: Tcrm lran {350.00 Million
:. Tenori 60 months mcluding 30 months of pnncipal montorium
3. R€Fym.nt: Palablc in 30 monthly in$almcnls frorr 30ih mondl from thc dalc of firsl
disbur!€mcnl
4. lnr.rcsr: 12.50% p.a.

5. Intercsl res€t: I y€ar

t.,

;:ntl I

C

1!11':5

.^9
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Drnub Homes Private Limited
Notcs to Financial Statements for thc year endcd Merch 31, 2024
(All a olnts arc in llillions, u lcss oth?nise statcd)

17. Olher financial liabilities
(Crrried at amortiscd cost) March 31,2024 Nlar':h 31.202-1

Intcr€st accrued bul not due

Interesl accrued and due

Accrued expenses

Total othcr fitrancirl li.bilities
Curent
Non current

65.07

512

5.64

0.14

29.86

70.19 35.64

3 5.6470.19

Iurrch 3l 2024

As et
M.r.h 31. 2023

Advance from customers (including cancelled customer)

Statutory dues and rclated liabililies
Uncamed Revenue

Corpus Fund

Others

345.23

24.15

3,656.62

0.25

0.t9

t63.99

34.51

6,812.80
0.05

0.04

Total other lirbilities
Currenl

Non c!rrent

{.027.0,1 _-_____1,!L!ls
7,011.45

As atAs.t
March 31.2024

3,314.31

712.61

19. Trrde payrblcs
Nfrrc h 31. 2023

Trade palables
- total outstanding dues ofmicro small and rnedium enterprises

- total outstanding dues to othcrs

Totd tr.de pry.bles

Trade payables

Trade payables to related parties

Tot.l tr.d. pryrblcs

Trade psyrbles sgeing schedulE

Tot l outstrnding dues ofmicro, lmrll rnd rtrcdluE .ot€rprlset
Irss than I year

I -2 yea$

2-3 yea6

Morc than 3 years

Told

Totrl outstrnding dues to othe$
Less than I ,,ear
I -2 years

2-3 yerrs
More than 3 years

Totrl

124.78

147.94

I t3.t0
282.16

272.12 195.r6

240.49

32.23

381.l8
14.68

As at
March 3l

272.12 395.t6

As at
2,024 Mrrch 3l 2023

99.53

2t.89

3.15

0.22

1r2.58

0.46

0.06

I15.64

27.12

4.40

0.78

271.96

1.78

1.02

141.94 2A2.16

The identilicatioD of Mic.o, Small and Mcdium Enterpriscs suppliers as defincd under "The Micro Small ald Mcdium Enterprises
Developmenl Act 2006, is based on information available with thc rnanagemcnt. As cenificd by the management, on thc accounts overdue (if
any) to Micro, Small and lledium Entcrprises on accomt of principal amount, interest has been accrued and will be paid to suppliers on

/',r-:demand ofclaim. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date

Ll'

lE. Other liabililies

124.1E ll3.l0

\.
l,i

1

1.1



Danub Homes Priv.te Limited
Notes to Finsncirl Strtements for the yesr ended M.rch.11,2024
(All anounls ore in Millions, unless olhcnrisc sloted)

20. Revenue from contrac(s rvi(h cus(omers

Revenue from real estate developmenl

Totrl revcnue from contrrcts rvith cuitomers
India

Outside India

Total revenue Irom contrrcts roith customers

Timing of revenue recognition
Revenue Recognition at a poinl in time

Revenue Recognition over pcriod of time

Totrl r€vcnue from contrlcts wlth customers

Olher operrting revenues
Modification income
Marketing commission
Cancelled customer income

Scrap sales

Stock transfer

Totel other operating reverues

Totll revenu€ from op€rrdons

Contract balances

5,946.65

5.916.65

5,946.65

5.9.r6.65

5,946.65

5,946.65

9.87

4.43

1.34

0.01

22.14

3.04
10.30

2t.65 -r6.0ti

___________lJ!!!L

As at

36.08

As at
Merch 3l 2024 March 3l 2023

90.45 235.68

3,656.62

345.21

6,812.80

t63.99

March 31.2024 Mrrch 3l 2023

Fair value gain on financial instrumcnts at fair value thmuSh profit and loss

Intcrest income

Miscellaneous incomc

22. Cost ofrrrr m.terirls, compon€ntr rnd stores cotrsumcd

0.07

5.92

0.r0

o.45

1.63

6.09 2.0E

Mrrch 31,2024 Merch 31,2023

r. Rrw mrterirl rrd comporerts consumed

lnventory at thc beginning ofthc ycar

Add: Purchases

Less: invenlory at the end of thc ycar

23. Constructioh rcdvity erpenses

r 70.31

153.37
(142.2t)
1al.47 1,003.60

4.55

1,169.36

(l7o.3l)

Msrch 3l 2024 Merch 3l 2023

Iand cost

Approval, lcgal and liaison

Construction cost

Interest and financial charges

592.45

25.89
1,386..14

24.83

354.35

58.31

I,7 51.19

95.90

2tr2e41 66.35

Nlarch 31, 2024 l\larch -11, 202-l

Contrrct assets

Trade receivables

Contmct liabilities
Unearned Revenue

Customer advances

21. Other income

,!ll

:iJ

a)

ijr;eErii,li

\



Danub Homes Private I-imiltd
Notcs to Financial Statcnrents for thc )car ended Uarth ll. 202{

lAll amounls are in Mi!lions, unkss olhcrv'ise stotcd)

24. (Increasc)/ decreese in stock oflla(s,land slock and r1ork-in_progrcss rnd tradcd goods

Ntarch 31 21114 Nlrr.h lrl 2023

a) Opening balance

Work-in-progress

Tolrl opening belaDc€

b) Closing balance

Work-in-progrcss

Land stock

Tot.l closlng brlsnce

c) Total difference in invcntory (e) - (b)

25. Employae benefits erpensc

6.{i61.99

6,86t.99
3,592.04

3,592.04

4,41r.53

586.?8

5,01t.31

6,86t.99

6,t61.99

I,lr43.6t _ 112!9.25)

2024 March 3l 2023

0.18

Iuarch 3l
Staffwelfare expenses

26. Finance costs

0.r{l

l\larch 3l 2024 Merch 3l 2023

lnterest Expense

- Interest on borrowings
- Interest on taxes

Other borowings costs

Less: Borrowing Cost transfened to Constuction activity expenses

27. Depreci.tion atrd amortizstion erpense

24.E3
9.37
Lll

95.94
11.53

r.28

35.11

(24.83)
108.75
(95.90)

12.t5

Ilsrch 31 2024 Mrrch 3l 7023

Depreciation ofproperty, plant and equipment

28. Other expens€s

l.l5 0.93

l.l5 0.93

Mirch 3l 2024 Mrrch 3l 2023

Rates and taxes

Advcrtising and sales promotion

l,cgal and profcssional fces

Pryment to auditor (Refer details belov)
Dmriions
RcDt

Bank chaiges

Miscellaneous expenses

Pryment to Auditors

0.03

0.60

0.53

0.58

0.07
o.22

0.45

15.00

0.2t
2.10

0.08

3.13

1.13 1t.t7

Mrrch 3l 2024 Merch 3l 2023

As ruditor:
Audit fee

In other crp.city:
Other services (certifi cation fees)

0.56

0.02

0.43

0.02

.D ,9

FRtt u".,,,.
i1

0.58 0.45

10.50

-a
]-



Drnub Homcs Private Limited
Notes to Finrncirl Stztcm€nts for the year ended Mrrch 31, 2024
(All d,tou,tts urc il Millio s.u tcss othcrnise statetl)

29. Tar €xprnsc

NIarch -ll 2024 March.ll.2023
Curren( income trl:
Currmt income tax charge

Defered t.r:
Relating (o origination and reversal of lemporary diffficnces
i) Property, plant and equipmenr

ii) Non dcductible expcnses for tax purposcs

iii) Inventory
iv) Uneamed revenue

vi) Borrowings

51.50

(0.0r)

It2.4t

(712.84)

99t.67

1t.22)

(0.01)

0.31

869.82

(950.96)

5.52

Income lrx expense reported in the stalement ofprofit or loss 329.10

Reconcilistion oft.x erpense rnd lhe.ccouDting prorit multiplied by lldia'i dorncstic t.r rate for Mrrch 31,2024 rnd Merch 31,
2023

Mrrch 3l 2024 Merch 3l 2023

7,09

Accounting profil baforc income tax
Tax oi accounting profit at statutory incomc tax mte 25

Tax elfcct on account of transition to IND AS

Deferred tax effect

Odlers

t7%
r,303.66

32E.t I
5.5 r

1.39

81.02

t15.32)
0.99

Income lrx expense reported in the statement ofprofit or loss 329.r0 7.09

*The Company electcd to exercise $e option permitted under section I I 5BAA of the Incomc Tax Act, | 96 I as introduced by the Taxation
trws (Amcrdmcnt) Ordinane, 2019. Acco.dingly, thc Company has recogniscd Provision for lnmmc Tax for the year arld re-mcasured its
Deferr€d lax asset (or/and deferrcd tax liability) basis thc rate prescrib€d ia lhe said scclion.

30. Earnings per shar€

I\rrrch 3l 2024 M.rch 3l 2023
Prolit .ttribut.ble lo equity holders for brsic errnirg, ( A )

Equity Shrre.
Number ofshares at the beginning of thc ycar
Add i shares issucd during the ycar
Totrl Number of shrres outstrrding rt aha ard oftha ycrr ( B )

Weighted average number of sharcs oulstanding during &e year - Basic

Add : Wcightcd avcragc number ofsharcs that have dilutive ellecr oo EPS
Weight.d rv.ngc numbcr ofsh.r.r outsa.nding durint thc yerr - Diluted ( C )

Errning per shrr€ of par v.lue {10 - Brsic ( D = A / B ) (In g
E.rnlDg pet shrre of prr vrlue {10 - Diluted ( E - A / C ) (In O

974.57

t0,000

(r.58)

t0,000

10,000

r 0,000

10,000

r0,000

( ls8)
(158)

10.000 !0.000

:?

CD .?
C

97,457

97,457



Denub ll0m€s Privite Limited
Not':s lo Finrocial Statemcnts for lh. r'err ended Nlrrch 31, 2024

.4 annuuts arc in Mi iots, unless otheBke stated)

31. Frir vrluc m€rsurlments
Th€ debils offair value measuremert ofCompany's financial assets,4iabiliti6 are as below

Finrncitl rssebnirbililies mersured rl Flirvahe through prorit/lois:

Lrvcl Nlnrch 3l 2024 M:rrch 3l 2023

Inveslrnen6 in quoted invcstrnenls -mutual funds I 1.17

Thc fair value oflhe filrtrcial as.rcls and liabilities is includ.d d tbc afiounl at which lh€ iostrume could be exchanS€d in a cunEnt

transacrion b€twcefl willing panics, othcr than in a forccd or liquidation sale. TherE havc bc€n no tr.nsfers betwern lcvels during the

pcriod.

The management assesscd that thc carrying values of cash and cash equivaler{s, trade recei\ables, sho( term investsnenB, loans,

Fadc payablcs, borrowings and othcr financial asscts and liabilitics approximatc thcir fair valucs largcly duc to thc short-term

maturitics.

Set out belorr, is a corDarison by clas! of lhc carrying amou[ts and fair valuc ofOe Company's financial iDstrumen6:

As rt As tt
Mrrch 31,202,1 Mtrch 31,2023

C.rrylng vrlue Frir v.lue C. ng Vilue F.ir vrlue

Finucirl Assets

Cash and casfi cquivalcnts

Bank balances other tha, cash and cash equivaler6

Loans

Othcr financial assels

Tradc receivabl€s

Fio.nchl Lirbilities
Borrowings (Non-Curr€nt)

Borrowings (Currart)

Tradc parbles
O$er fi nancial liabilities

55.82

45.1 I

1,95t.55
655.35

90.45

602.00
44.95

1,606.72

329.88

235.68

2,3@.96
400.41

272.'12

70.19

23fi.96
400.41

272.72

70.19

2,606.01

t00.:5
395-86

15.64

55.82

45.1I

1,951.55

655.35

90.45

602.00
44.95

1,606.'12

329.88

235.68

2,606.03

100.35

195.86

35.(

32. Crpilrl Mrmgemnt
The Company's objectivcs of capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. ln order to maintain or adjust lhe capital

stnrcrurc, rhc Company may adjust rhc retum to shar.holdcrs, issud buyback sharcs or scll ass€ts to rcducc dcbt. Thc ComPany

managcs ils capiral stsucturc and makes adjustrncnts in light of changes in etonomic cooditions and the requirerncnls of th€ fin ncial

Thc Company monitoF capital usrng a gearing ratio, B,hich is nct debt divided by total cquity plus net debt as below.

.Equity includes cquity share capilal and all oth6 cquity comporcflb attributable l,o lhe cquity holders

'Net debl includes bonowings (non-current and currEnt), trade payables aDd oth€r financial liabilities, less cash and cash

equivalents (including bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalenls and margin money dePosits wi$ banks)

As rt Ar ra
Nlarch 3l 2024 ,zrch 3l 2023

Bonowings (DoD-cureot and clrrftrt)
Trade payables

Othc' financial liabilitics (curEnl and non-culrlrfi)
trss: Cash and cash equivaldlts(iDcluding balanc€s at banl 0$6lhrn
cash lnd cash cquivalcrts and margin moncy dcposits wilh bank)
N.t D€bt (A)
Equity sharc capital

Oihcr.quity
Equit) (B) 959.7E (11-79)

Equiry plus n.t dcbt (C= A+B) 3,963.11 2,476.14

Gearing rntio (D = A,/C) 15.78oh 100.60%

In ordcr io achicvc lhc objcctiv. of maximizc shardroldcrs valuc, thc Company's capilal managcmcnt, amongsl othcr thi[8s, aims to

ensurc thal it meets filrtrcial covmanls atlached to lbc inlerest-bealing borrowings lhat dcfuc capital stnrcture rcquircments. Any
significanr br€ach in mccting th. fimncial covcnants would allow lhc bank to call bonowings. There have b€en no brcaches in ihe

fi nancial covcnants of abovc-mcntioned interest-bearing borrDwing.

No changcs wcre madc in thc objcllives, policics or proccsscs for managing capital during thc culrcnt and previous y.ars.

2,761.37

272.72

70.19

2,706.38

395.86

15.64

(100.91) (646.9s)

2,490.93

0.10
( 14.89)

.:a

3,003.35
0.10

959.68

,1/

/r'irN !t,,1';r
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Danub IIomes Prilaic l-im cd
Notcs to Firercial Strtenrcnls for lhc )ca. cnded Mrrch I l. 202.1

(-4ll a ou s arc i Milio s, u ll!5s othe$ire stdted)

Markel risk is the risk thal the fair value of future cash flows of a ,inancial instrument will fluctuale because of changes in market

prices. Markcl risk compriscs two O?cs ofrisk: interest ratc risk and othcr price risk, such as cquity price risk and commodity/ rcal-
eslate risk.

anal)sis has bccn prcparcd on lhc basis that the amount of nct dcbt and the ratio of fixed to floating intcrcst mtcs of the debl. Thc
anal)sis excludcs thc impact of movem€nrs in marlet variablcs on th€ carrying values of gratuity and olher post retiremml
obli gationYprovisions.
The below assumption has bca made in calculating lhe sensitrvity aralysis:

The s€nsitiviry of the r.levant profil or loss item is the eff.ct of th. assumed chlrng6 in r6p.clivc marker risks. This is bas€d on the

financial ssscrs and financiel liabilitics held at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Intcrcst ralc risk is thc risk that thc fair valuc or futurc cash flows ofan cxposrrc will flucuatc bccause of changes in lntcrGt mte.

Tte entity's cxposurc lo thc risk of changes in Inlerest ra(ai relales primarily to lhe entity's op€rating acuvitiqs (when receivables or
pay.bles arc subject to diffcrcnt intercst rates) and the entity's net reccivables or payabl€s.

T}le Company is affcctcd by thc price volatility of c.rlain commodilres/ real estate. Its opcrsting sctivitics require the ongoing

dcvelopmmt of rcal cstatc. The Company's managcmcnl has dcvclopcd and enacted a isk managanent slrategy regarding

commodity/ real cstat€ pricc risk and irs mitigation. The Company is subje.t lo the price risk variablcs, which are expected to rary in

line with thc prcvailing maftel conditions.

Itrt.rest lrt€ rln,itl!/lty
Tbe following labl6 dgnonstrate the serlsitivity ro a rcasonably pcsible change in int4r.st mtcs, with all o$€r variables held

constant. The impact on the ComFny's profii bef6c tax is duc to changs in the fair r,alue of non-currcrt and current borrswings

and olh6 c1rficnt and non currcnt financial liabilitics.

Chrnge ln rrlr Effect ofprofit
before tat

Mrrch 31,2021

Mrrch 31,2023

+to/o

+lo/o

0.35

(0.35)

I.09
(1.09)

fhc Company invcsts surplus tunds in liquid rnutual firnds. Thc Company is cxposed to markct pric. risk arising from onccrtaintiG
about fuiure values ofth€ inv€sEnent. The Company mana86 thc .quity pric€ risk through investing surplus funds on liquid mutual

funds for shon tcrm b6sis.

Thc tablc bclow summariscs thc impact of increase/decrcasc of lhc Net As.!€t Value (NAD on thc profit for the year. The analysis is

bascd on thc assumptim that lhc NAV pricc would incrasc 5% and dccrcasc by 5% with all \laliablc constant

Incrcesc/
Ch.n8.ln r.te (decrcrsc) in

Drofit
Mrrch 31.2024

llarch 31.2023

+syo

-5o/o

!) Acc

33. Finrncirl risk m.nrgement objcctives lnd policies

Tfie Company's principal financial liabilites. comprise borrowings. trade and olh€r payables. Th€ main purpose of these financial
liabilitj.s is to financc thc Company s opcrations.

The Company's principal financial asseB includ€ loans. trade, other reccivables ard cash and cash equiulenB and bank balances

other than cash and cash cquivalcnrs that derive dir.ctly from its opcrations.

The Company is expos€d lo maiLet risk, crcdit nsk and liquidity risk. Thc Company's maragcmcnr overse€s the rnanagemenl of
th6e risks and cnsurcs lhal thc Company's financial risk activiti.s arc govcrned by approprialc policics and procedurd and that
financial risk are identificd, measured and managcd ir accordance with the Company's policics and nsk objectives.

i. Mrrkct risk

:il aie41

.:lliluliAi.14



Drnub Ilomes Privat€ Limitcd
Notes ro Finrncirl StltGments for thc !"€rr cnd€d M.rch 31. 2024

Ullanromts are in Miuiotts. u lcss othe\ne stuted)

ti. Credit risk
Credir risk is $e nsk of loss thar may arise on oulslandinS financial instruments if a coumerparty default on ils obliSaxons. The

Company's cxposure to credir risk anscs majorly from trade rcccivablcv unbilled revcnue and olher financial asscls.

Olher financial assets like security deposirs, loans and bank de?o6ils are mosdy with employees, govemment bodies and banls and

hencc. the Company docs not cxpcct any credit risk with rcspcct to thcse financialasse6.

wi(h rcsFrt to h-ade receivablcv unbilled revenue, thc Company has constitutcd tcams io rcview the receivablcs on pcriodic basis

snd to takc necessary mitigations, wherever required. The Company creates allowance for all unsecured receivablcs based on lafetirne

cxpcctcrl crcdit loss (ECL).

lii. Liquidlty risk
Th. Company's principal sourccs of liquidity are cash and cash cquivalents and thc cash flow that is generated from opcratoos. The

Company b.licves that lhc cash and cash cquivalents is sumcicnl to meet its currcnt rcquircmcnls. Accordingly no liquidity risk is

Pcrccivcd.
The brcak-up of cash and cash cquivalents, deposib and investments is as below.

Mrrch 3l 2024 Mrtch 3l 2023

Cash and cash equivalenls

Bank balances other than c.sh and cash €4ujvalents

Invcslrnen6

Thc rebtc bclow summaris.s fic maturity profile of thc Cornpany's financial liabilitics at thc tcpodng dale- Thc amounls arc bas€d

on conEactual undiscounled PaFcnts

M.turlty p.rlod Mrrch 31, 2024 Mrrch.3l, 2023

55.82

45.1I
1.77

602.00
44.95

Flnrnci.l lirbilitiei - currant
Bo owings (curent)
l,easc liabilities

Trade payables

Other fi nancial liabilities

Within a ycar

Within a ycar

within a ycar

Within a ycar

395.86

35.64

400.4r 100.35

272.12

70.t9

Finrncirl lirbili(ies - non currenl
Borrowings Between 13 years 2,360.96 2.606.0i

l=Rl. orc;tti
clltNNAl.l.l

ne
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D2nub Hom$ l,rivrrr Limilrd
Nores to lirrnci.lSt.teDents for lhc )crr.nd.d Nl2.rh 31.2024
tlU onto!t^ tr. h.\tillo s unl.* otfun\iv lated)

l.r, Rehr.d prrt! tr.nections

rlies.nd n.lur. ol rclttionrhi

Casgra.d Prcmicr Buildcr LiDncd (Fomcrly knom as Casgand Buildcr PriErc
Limii.d)
Cssr Gan& Mil.slon. P.ivrtc Umncd
Cas. Gmd. Z.sr PriBlc Lihilcd
Ce Gmd. GrEcc Privatc Limalcd

C6a G@dc Gardcn City Buildcrs Privatc LiBit.d
Cs!! Grardc Hom6 Privat. Limil.d
Cas& Crardc Civil Ensimrins Priwlc Limil.d
Casagrond Horizons Privale Limn.d
Casa Grand€ Axiom ftivalc Limitcd
Casryrend Sraylo8y Privatc Limircd
C6sg"nd vistaaz Private Limit.d
Csatllrld M.8ick Rury Privatc Umir.d
Csatlihd Sman value Hom6 kiv6r. Limitcd
Caarn'td Bizp t Priv.t€ Umitcd
Caasrand R.8alc Privat€ Limncd
c.zy Mag Privat Umitcd
Casagrand Millcnia Priv.t. Limit d
Casagrmd P.rch Build.r Privat. Limit.d
CasaSrand Bcacor PivaE Unit.d
Casgr.nd t tus Privalc Limilcd
FlcI Build.r Priv.t Umit d
Casasrand FincdhorD6 Priwtc Umitcd
CasaSrand AlphirE Privat! Ul,n.itld (ftc,,r 2AO7 DOZ2\

Cssr8rand Aslutc Pritit Limit.d
Ca!.8rand A6lhctic Privilc Limil.d
Calsgrand SugcT Priwt. Limitcd
Exoria Buildd Private Limit.d
Casrgra.d zingo Privat Limil.d
Casagnnd Ev6ta Privatc Limilcd
C&rlgrand Exoti! Priwtc LnriGd
Calagrrnd Virraccl'rivstcLimilcd
Cas.grud Hydcrwisc Privalc Limilcd
cssaSr.nd Fr.sh Privatc Linhcd
CasaSrand Conr,?cts Privdc Linited (&om l?{7-2021)
Cass8r d Covlan kivaic Limitcd (i'om 0t-0E-2023)
Csrsgrand U'buo Privlc Limilcd (iom 30{E-2023)
Cssagrad Awloo PrivsL Linircd (60r' I l-0E-2023)

Ct'3grmd Gtll'rt6 Rcal Esulc LLC (from 10{7-2023)
C{s! Gr.ndc Shcl&. PriEr. umircd (*.c.f. I l-12-2023)

Cs Grmdc Rc.liors Pdv.ic Limii.d (\r.c.f 1312-2023)

Caa Grmd€ Vdlam Privst! Lihir.d ($,.c.f 1312-2023)

Casagnnd Anchor Privatc Limit€d

Casagr.d Viv.city Priva& Limit.d

Cllaglrd Bluc Horizon kiva& Limit.d

C.sagnnd M.gum kivaE LjmiEd
Hcadwly Ac. It'duipd Privat Umir.d (to6 &{5-2023)
CGD bdustlid Pnts Pivrtc Lmitcd (Aon 031G2023)
Hcidwy Prcmicr Indusp.rt PriEt Unit d(nmq-12-2023)
Vision Prrmi.r Induspr.* kivr& Limi&d (froo 04-12-2023)

Bac@ Prc.nicr Indusport( hiv!& Umn.d (tw o4J2-2023)
cr$srand sprccidcll Privrtc Limitcd
Upstry Buildg r'rird! UniGn
Irir Whit.ho'rd Privrr. Limit€d (noo I 3{2-2024)
Cri. Grln& Er apris.' LLP
Cr5! Grm& Sh.lr6 LLP fi[ I l-12-202])
Cr$ Grm& R.ltiors LLP (Till l3-12'2021)
Ces Grm& VdLrD LLP (fill ll-12-2023)
D.sring Ikvclopcc LLP
Cr.c! Glacd Comburity LLP

Ulrimate Holding complny

F.llow Sut6idiary

Fcllow Sut6idiary

F.llow Sut$idi.ry
Fcll@ Subsidiary

Fcllow Subsidiary

Fcllow Subsidiary

Fcllow Subsidiary

Fcllow Sutsidisy
Fcllow Sub6idi.ry

Fcllow Sukidi.ry

Fcllow Subsidirly

Fcllow Subsidiary

F.llow sukidi.ry
Fcllow sutdidiary
F.llow subsidiary

F.llow Subsidi.ry
F.llow Subsidirry

'J 4

01"6.115So
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D.nub Homrs Prnrrr l,imilcd
Notcs ro linrn.irlStrremetrrs for thr,\'.ar.nded March 11.202.1

l4ll a ou tt d,t ,' tlilliint, u le* oth(^\ta anttlt)

Key mana!.mcnt p.rsonn€l

Kcy mJnJg.m.nl t rronnel

K.\manarmcnt ptMnn.l ot parenl cnlrly
Kct msnascm.nt pcMnnel of pador cnury
Kct manalcmcfl t p€Nnncl of parenl cnlrty

Kcy manlg.m.nt FBoon.l of parctrt.nlity

K.v manas.m.nt Dcrontr.l ol D.renl .nti lv

Siva S.nkar R.ddy NaS.lla
Rajnc.sh Jah (Till 14.04.2024)

Raghunadan Summlh Xrishna

Nrture ofRrlrlion$iDN.me ofrhr rrllid P.rlY

Entilics undd common control

Aru HoPc Foundalion

Blitzkicg TcchnoloSy Privale Lim'r.d
Casagrand BriSht Kids Privatc Limncd
Z€st Horn. S.arch Lt-P
IRIS D.vclopm.nr LLP
AM Family Tru5tc6hip Ll-P

CasasEnd Suprcm. Hom. LLP
Nobiliras Hom. scarch LLP
Bluc Sca Hom.s Scarch LLP
CdaSrand Luror Privalc Limitcd
Ch.ngalpattu Wa'chousiDg Pa*s PnvaE Unil.d(Till I E 12-2023)

solac. Gatcd Commurity LI?
Vmcr.t. Ho(n6 LLP
S.3 vicw Hom. s€3rch LLP
AAK Rcalty S.rvic6 LLP
clllanrc Prunotci LLP
Casa Gnndc Coimbattr LLP
Propcl Holdings LLP
Casagrand Arun Mn Acadcmy Foundalion

Spacio Pr.rni.r Global Psd( Priwc Limil.d (Till Octob.r 2023)

Cs$grand Stdpdk I'r al. Linitcd
Casa C@dc hoFarc Priv.t LimiLd
Domyhom. lnrdior Design & Solutions Pnvatc LimiEd (fomcdy ldlo$r' !s Cls. lnlcri

Nore : Relarcd pary rclitio$hips de !s idc.rificd by rhc Mtugencnr

0
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D.nub Boms Prir.t. l,imnrd
Nor.s r. t_in.n(irl St.lcBerir for ihe tr.. e €d nhr.t ll.20r.l
(A onou.ts d4 t )\tlhoh\ u l.\\otlp kenated)

ii. IrrDsrtions sith (nc r.l.lcd p.r(i.s

2021 llt$ct l l 202-1

Ce Gtud. Axiom PriElc Umn.d
Ce Gtud. Mrl.tl6. Pri!.t. Unit.d
C&gr3nd Prcmid Builds Umil.d (Fom6ly kDM !s Cstr.nd Build.r Priw.
limit.d)
D.ming Dcwlop.E LL!
GE@ Gat.d Community LLP

Cae Gtude Civil Ergrn..ring PrillL Umiid
c& otud. cEcc Pri!"L Limarcd

Ce Grad. Hom.s hvrL Umit.d

ce cddc Shchcr LIPI& Gr.n& sn ltc. ftint. UmiEd

C.s GBndc Vill.m LLP

C& Gmd. Z.d PriEL LioiLd
C$.8lird FEslt Prirrtc UmiLd
C.lssMd Millcni Priv& UhiLd
Cs8rlrd ViE.. Priv.tc Limiicd

AAK Realty Scniccs LLP

cas.tEd Fircdhom.s Privtt! LiEil.d
C...8r.nd HdizG Priut. Lirnitcd

Casasnnd M.dcr Rury Privsl! tilni(.d
C!Ear..d Znto P.ittl. Umilcd

Cre Gr.nd. Mil.std. hv.l. Umitcd

AAK R€ally ScNiccs LLP

Ce G@dc Civrl Engin.ditrg kivalc Umncd

Cel. Gnnd. Hlms Privd. Limil.d

Cssa Gmde Htri@nl Privlt. UmiGd

Cegrdd Maticl Rufy kiv.l. Umicd

Ce Cmd. Cnc. Privalc Umitcd

Cae Gtude AxioB Prilat. Udilcd
Ce CB.d. Gddm City Buld.6 kival. Umikd

Crl. Gmd. Roltm LLP

Cs GEnd. SllIn V.lu. Hffi PriBc timit d

C.!.gsd FincdhonE Privrc Umitld

Dri'ning Dcvclopc" Llp

Casalrrnd VisBrz Privrt. Umir.d

Casgrand Ar.hd Prinr. Limircd

Casagmnd Hydcrwisc kiv c Umn.d

clss Gsd. Zsr hvrr. umit d

C.sagird Altto Priv.tc Limitcd

0.09

0.t 2

0.02

0.0?

33{t.13

2.51

149.&

8.56

0.33

6.70

10.22

l.zt
0.0t
0.0r
0.56
2.99
1.84

0.7 t

0.55

r8.3r

o.92
0.15

1.78

t.8t
0.04
't.51

0.oa

t6.53

31.22

129.29

0.01

0.10

t6.50
8.85

0.06

0.01

0.10
0.17

0.01

0.48

0.01

0.09

2.65

0.15

10.07

.) Fr.tliayM!.r@nl..rvlc.t
Ce Gord. Prcp.r. Priurc UmiEd

d) A&.nir.mDt .rF!*.
Casa Grandc EnErpriscs LLP

Casa Grandc Civil Enginedn8 PriEl! UmiLd

o Rdhlirkmra olctDcrr.r
car.snnd PEtnis hilds Unit.d (FetEly krDsr rs Curmd Build.r Priv !

Crs. GErd. Ciul EntlncciiDg Eilll. timit.d
Csg6.dAMM, Aodr yFmdldd
c.s. G dc AiioB Priv.t Liritcd

0.40

0.12

0.03

0.03

16.36

84.46

53.10

313.U

71.t0

628 03

t3.49
15.00

0.t3

i) &

: qr,l tt1641
(:liENl.rAl.l4

g) RdnblE.m of.rp..*i - R..d.ry-
caiagtud zinso Pnhtc Lihn.d 0.10

U\J-



U.nub HoEs Prit.r. Limn.d
N.r6 to Fin.nci.l Sl.t.D.rls for th.y..r.trded lurrch.ll. !02:l
l l ll antounts o,. h Llilk ls. nl.s oth.^t6. stated)

M.rch ll. 202,1 [l.r.h ]1.:0rl

Casgrand Anchor Prilzt. Umil.d

Cara Gudc Coimbarorc Ll}
CM Grand. Oardcn City BuildcE Priv.t. Umn.d

C.sagrand H)dcNi$ Privatc Limn.d

C.lasand t!tus Privar. LimiLd

Dawniq Dcvclops LIr
C.sa Gr.ndc vrllm LLP

C& Gtudc Shclld LLP

C&gred Filt dhoDcs Privai. Limitcd

cegtud FGh PriEl€ LjmiGd

c.e€md Sp.lci .ll PriYric unncd
Cls.gr.nd Vi!r..c Priar. Umicd
ceSntd Milloi. Privat Umit d

Ce Grud. Zca Eiv.tc Umilcd

Ce cEnd. Miletonc PriBrc Umitcd

Calr cftndc Gnc. Privllc Umit d

Gr.c€ Cat d Commu ty Ll}
C's. O!"!d. Ariom Priv.tc Umn d

CNglrrd ZnSo PriEl. Ljmitcd

GEzy M.g Priut. LimiEd

3.01

0.56

4.81

2.09

0.01

0.01

t.25

713.06

l. t6
0.69

I46.16
0.50

0.r5

OM

50.74

0.93

t24.42

l.l9
0.r0
0.29

0.20

0.0t

4.99
0.05

0.18

0.2t

180

0.71

t,246.11

555.23

3.08

z.t6
3.70

045

9.21

0.01

0.t I
0.07
2.07
0.02
0.55
2.51

0.68

51.t4
7.96

t.52
6.24

l) R. , Eq..t .
C.!.€rud PEmi.r Buildcr UDiLd (Fffily hoM !r c.sgrud Buildcr PriEl.
Umitcd)

)d .t

't
Rtl 016li 5'->

i-.H[NNA'',i1

Cesand Firk{homes PriYaG Linitcd
Ce Cr&d. Sman value Hom6 Priv.E Linired

C&sasnnd Frcsh Privarc Limit d

Casa Gtudc Axiom Priv.t Umir.d
Ce Grodc Coinb.lqc LLP

C&s: GEndc Gnc. PriEt Umitn
Css. Gr.rdc Horizons Prisle Umitcd

Casgr.nd Mrgict Rury Privdc Limit d

Cae GEnd. R6lto6 LLP
Cegmd PEmi.r Builda Umn d (Formoly known as Caegred Buil.lcr PriEt.
Umilcd)

C&saE .rd Mill.ni. PriEt Umit.d
Ce ctud. Z.st Priv.lc Limitcd

Ce Gmdc VsUM LLP

cc.. GBtr& Mildlonc kiv.ic umiLd
C& GEn& Civil EnBtrqint Priv.tc Unitd
c& c..nd. sh.lr.r Priral. Umir.d
AAK Rehy Sc ic6 LLP

C$a Grrndc Glrdcn City Buildfi Privrc Limilcd

Cssa Gr.ndc Hmc5 Prir,.t Umit d

CeSrud Visruz Priutc tirnitcd
c.sarud A6rhclic hv.tc Umncd



Drnob llom.s Prit.te Limii.d
Not.! ro fin.ncid Sl.r.m.nt!,or th. y..r.trd.d Mr.h 11.202.1

ll dnou,8 dt. in |li inns, Lnle$ oth.h*ise stdt d)

iii. It2l,.(.s $iih rhc r.lzlrd Darlits M*rh 31.2021

Cas Cmndc Enlcrp.iss LLI
Cae Crande Ptupcarc Pnvar. Umired

2lt 9l
1.32

45

3.24

b) Ston l.m ho.rowtnts
C$a Gmde Cdo City Buildfis Prilate Uhncd
AAK R.alry Scdic6 LLP

Ce Cmde Homcs Privrtc Umir.d

CeSEnd Spac.inr.ll Privaic Lmild
CegEnd Vislad kiv.t. Unit.d
Ce C6ndc Civil Engn6i.t Pri!.t tiBircd
C.!.s d Shcltcr U-P

Dasing Dcwlop.6 LLP

Ce Cmd. Axiom Priv.tc Umit d

Ga? Msg PrivaL timitld
CNgr.nd Filt dhom.! Pnv.tc UBit d

Cegnnd Hdids Privlt timicd
ce GE!d. GE . Priv.tc Uhit d

c.!.tl8d Mill.nit Privltc tjmicd
Ca.. Cru& Milcr@c Privrtc UmiLd

Cegrud Anchor Pri$r. Umild
C.stlird Irtus PriEt Limicd
C4..grard znlo Pritrl. umn.d
Cts.gnnd Hydcmi!. Priv . UBit d

.) Short t m lo...d.dv.n.6
Cas. C.6dc Aiiom Priue Umit d

Crs. Grandc Sman valuc Homcr Priv e Umitcd

cslagr.nd Acslhclic Prirrc Umir.d

Clsglld Firicdton6 Priaet. Umil.d

c.!. GBnde coihb.ror. LLP

Caqgr.nd Horrzol8 kiul. Umikd

Cas.Srrnd MaSicr Rut P.ival. UmiLd

&sa (h.ndc Milcsronc Privar. Limit.d

C$! Grande Sh.ker LLP/C!$ OEnd. Sh.lld PriEtc Limitcd

Cas! Gmd. Zsi PriE& Unil.d
Cegl'nd Prdid Buildd Uhil.d C(,ffily krowtr ss C&r.ttud Auild.r ftivrt
Ljmil.d)

crs.s d Milldi. PriEt. Umitd
Ct!. Gu& Civil Etr8iD.ciing kivrt Umn d
C.$ GEnd. Hmc Prir,!t. Linil.d
CeSrErd rrcsh Prihlc UmiLd

t24.52

o24
0.02

1644

i.rn

0.05

0.20
50.74

0.r0
4.87

Ll9

0.20

0.01

0.t0

0.01

0.02

99 00

0.07

0.80
0.22
0.10

1.22

0.01

0.04

0.31

223
1.24

0.93

0.69

0.07

618.10

0.01

I,605.03

0.05

280.17

2.90
0.12
6.10
3.03

0.50
0.09

0.07
0.92

r.66
0.16

0.50
0.69

|,944.M

l -06

d) I!1.r... r..rlY.H.
Cr$ Cnn& Axiod Priv{. UmiEd
Cr..Smd Pr.,nia Build.r Umir.d (Fo.'rdy rnovll .. C.s.Snnd Pr!mi.' Builda

Dswritrr D*!lop.6 Llr
Cr!c. Gar.d Cammuoity LLP

Ce Gandc Civil EngiEiry Prihl. tiDilcd
C.sr Grrnd. G&! rtirtL Uail,.d
Ce Cnnd. Hm6 Prird. timir.d
cE Gtudc Mil6t6. Priur. timircd
Cr.r Gudc Shclta t.t.PC$. GE!d. shcltd Prifl. Umitcd

Cegtud Hcizuts Prirt! Umir.d
C.s3 Gotrd. Zcd Prinr. Umircd

Cegnnd F.!.h Plilrc Lmird
Cr..gr!d MiU6n PriE& Umncd

Crsgmd vitl& PrinG UhiLd
A K Ralty Scfvic6 tlP
Cegn .l FirEdlrcm.. Privit Umi!.d
C!!.aad Magick Rury Priv.t Unit d

C.!.gnnd zinto PriE& l.ihitcd

0.02

0.t0
0.08

0.92

1.76

0.16

0.06

0.0t
0.11

0.0r

2.90
0.10
6.70
3.11

0.01

FRN O16T15S

CHEN NAI- 11 -l

rl 4

r.rAo

(,



Danub Homes Privste l,imitrd
Notes to Fi lncirl Statem€nts for th€ ycrrended Mirch31,2024

Mill@ns, nless olheryise stated)

Irarch 31, 2024

As ,t
March 31.2023

c) Int.rcat pryrble

Calagrand Magick Rury Private Limitei
AAK Realty Services I-LP

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limiled

Casagrand Horizons Private Limited

Casa Crand€ Milestone Private I-imited

Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Casa Crande Gardelr City Builders Private Limited

Casa Crande Reahors LLPlCasa Grande Realtom Private Limifed

Casa Grande Smart Value flomes Privste Limited

Casagrand Fittedhomes Private Limited

Casa Grande Grace Private Limited

Casa Gmnde Zest Private Limited

Casagrand Vistaaz Private Limited

Casagrand Anchor Private Limited

Casagrand Hlderwise Private Limited

Casagrand Zingo Private Limited

Dawning Developers LLP

0 Sh!r. Cepitsl

Casa Grande Milesrone Private Limited

35, Commitments and contingeocies
(a) Conmitments

Estimated arnounts ofcontracts reinaining to be executed on capital account and not providerl for:
(i) Capital expenditurc conmitments: (3 I March 2024 - Nil ; 3 I March 2023 - Nil)

(b) Contingent liability
(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

0.03

0.04

16.5

0.92

2.55

0.82

10.61

0.01

3.75

0.01

0.t5

0.03

0.01

0.4

0.12

0.03

0.09

0.10

0.03

0.04

0.92

0.82

0.53

0.01

3.27

0.01

0. t0

Particulars
As at

March 31,2024
As at

March 31,2023
lncome ta\
Other matters* '72.82 72.82

72.82

Details ofContingent liability morc than l0 Mn
Particulars

I ) The Complainant filed the cas!- calming l/15 share ofDanub Homes Perumbakkam prorlcny. Further the written sta(cment
filed by one ofthe Defendant and Memo filed by another Defendant to srike ofhis narne and memo retumed. The case is
pending before PDJ Chengalpet.

Note - *lt is not practicable for the Company to estimate thc tirning ofcash outflows. ifany, in respcct ofabove matters pendint
resolution of the respective proceedings.

iRr,{ c164'1li3
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I)rrtrb Honrcs Prirsr. Limncd
\or(\ ro financial StrteDtenls for th. )..r{Dded March 11.202{
ttllo 1,\nlsnt( ,\ltlltlr! u lei.ttutrtnnnnd)

-16. Stgm.rl rcportirti

Th. G'oup rs into rcbusrn.ssolrcalcsotcdc\.loprn.nlhcnccsclmenlrcponin8as P$Ind aS l0N ir n.llpPllcrblc

r7. RJri,, anal)si\. d il! rIn]tn(\

-rl.20tl lt. t02l
lUIl rs:0ll llrlt r\ ztrllr

Enrpk,ycd

.,xr ( ircludinS irlcrest

Prelirence Dild.nd

Ncl crcdir purchar.' =

crcs crcdrt purchass 
l

purchasc rctum

Ner sales = Totalsal.s.

Dcbt s.n'ic. . Financc

.o\t (includinE iniercsr

coDsidered as op.mtiotr
cosr) - trase payncnls

- Principal Epaymdls

Av.6Be Shar.holdels
Equrty

N.r el.s = Total salcs

Capiul Employcd =

Tax Liabilily

202

zEE

3 tl

076

lt5

I .ll

lll

0.ll

010

175

001

0 0.r

0 0t

NA

5l0t%

10t.57%

na6159,

t7'711lv,

r8100 00ei,

,10 009;

-500 00';

3300 000r,

lr)

rv)

(!ii)

(vni)

Erplrr.tion for Vrrl.Dc. tu rrtios by mor. thrr t5%

l. M.rct 2024 vr Mrtch 2023

r) hc.ce in CuEcnt Ralio is du. 1o ddrca. in curcnt labililics.

!) In.r6e ir D.bc Equiry Rato n du. lo incGe in avrag. sheholdcls .quity

ni) Incree in Dcbr Scdicc Covcralc ratio is duc to incrcasc in d.btsnicc

iv) lncr.6. i, R.tum on Equiry ntu is du. lo incr.4. in proiitability.

v) l.cr.6. in TBd. R.ccivablc Tunol,fi Ratio is duc to incrc6. i. Bdu. durirg fi. )rd
r')Decrc@ in TEdc Payible Tmolcr Rano s due to dccrc4c in purches durinS rh€,rd

!ii) lncrcasE in Ncr CapiralTumovn Rario is du. Io in..carc r r.vcnu. drinS ihc )rd
viir) lncrcdc in Ncl Profil mtio is du. lo incrce in profil

ir) Incr€a. in R.nm on Capilal EmplolEd is du.lo incrcasc in Eamin&r b.for. int re$ md ur.s

CHENNAI.l'
RN:016415
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llanouts ore n Mill@ns. r l.s ol@nrise stdt.tt)

3t. Olh.r rl.tulory irtorn.lio"
(i) Thc Cmpdv do not hav. any B.namaprcpcrty. whcrc &y pmedinS has b€n initi.tcd d pcnding against Thc Crqlp forholding

(ii) Th. Compey do not tayc lny u-ans.clions s ith companies suuck otr

(iii) ftc Comp y do not halc any charScs or s.tisfaction which is yei io bc rcgistdcd with ROC b.yoid lhc statulory p. od,

(iv) Th. Cmpay hav. not trad.d or invcslcd ir Crlplo cur.ncy or Virtual Cur.ncy dutinS lh. fio.ncid )t&.
(v) Thc Cornp.ry have nd .dmccd d lo.n€d o. i.v6t.d fi,nd5 ro .ny oths pc'sd(s) q mfi(i.s) , iicludinr fo.!i8n cntili€s
(htm.{itics) eith thc undc66ndinS lhar thc l.rcmcdi.ry shlll:

(r) dir.crty or indircctly lc.d or i.v6I in olhcr pcrsd.rs d olitid idmlificd rn uy Mmcr wn*!o.vc. by or o! bchalf of Th. Cnoup

(Ukim.t. Bc.cfi ciarics) ot

(b) provid. .ny gu@nre. s.curiry or thc likc lo or on bchelf of thc Uldm.tc Bcncficidi.s

(vi) Thc Compdy hav. not r.c.iv.d dy tutrd frcm lny pcrson(s) 6 .rtit{i.s) , includin8 forci8, cntitid (Fuadint Paiy) wilh thc

udcrsLnding (whcrtq Erordc{ in wiring or o$crwis.) that The Grol,p shlll:

(.) dil.crly or idiEtly lmd or inv6l iD otbd pcMs q cntiri6 idcnrificd in .!, ,n.nncr whllrocvcr by o. n b.h.lf of th. Funding

Plrty (UltirErc Bcneliciari.r) or

(b) providc a.y guaEnG!, sccurity or thc likc on bchllf of thc Ultimale Bdcfici&ics.

(vii) Thc Compary h.vc nor any such nansnction which is not recoided in th. b@ks ofaccor,,rrs filt has b€cn surcndcrcd or disch$n
ss incoirc dsing th. y.ar in $c rrr aiscssmcnts und.r tlE Incom. T.r Acl, lxl (s.h s,s.rrch or suN.y or ,ry olh.r rclcmt
prcvirion oflh. hclm Td Acl,196l
(viii) Th. bo.rcwi.gs ohr2incd by fi. C@p{'y froft b!nt! .d financa.l insliturtoB h.E bca' .pplicd fs th. purpos6 fo. which such

(ix) Thc Comp&y has noI b..n dcclaEd vilftl dcf.ultcr by t !y banl or finlrcid l6titutio. o. olhcr lddcr
(x) Th€ Compdy hd not crs,ucd ils prop.ry, ptad and cquipmcn! {including idl{f{s rsras) o. inl,ngibl. a!5.15 or borh durirg
thc cunal or pEvious FaIs.
(xi) Tl'c Cdnp.ry i5 not a Corc lnycstm.nt Company (clc) s dcfiD.d d'. rc8ul.dons,n'dc by utc ReNe But oflDdi! lltd the

croup do.s nor havc any CICS. which ar! pan of thc Gdp.

39. Erp.ndlttrc h foragr c.rr.ncy
Thc .oflpuy hd nol madc any .,q,.ndiorc tu for.iSn cuncl|cy-

As p.r ollr rcpon of.vcn darc

D2trlh Hom.( Pri\ate Limiled
i\io(.s ro tinlncirl Statements lor rhc }.rr ended Nl.r.h ll.202l

rorABCD&Cc
Chtrt rld Aeflnt nts

Fiin Rcgis! im Numbcr : 0l64I5S

ror lrd on behrlfoflhe Boird ofDir.clori of
D.trtrb tlofr .r Prlv.(. I-lhlr.d

zl0.  rdll Tnll
'Ihc com!tuy mirtains prop., book ofaccoud &i Equircd by drc law. Thc too&s ofaccoorr @ .lso .lclronically m!hi!in./ by rh.
comp.ny. Th. b.clop is rBirhincd io sp6 le.!.d in Ind . Thc .c.ounling soft*[c h.! llic fcltr of rcddint .tdit tlril of c.ch

al , Cod. or sci.l s.crrtty

Th. Codc o S$ial S.curily, 2020 {'Codc') r.hntrg 0o cmploy.c bcocliLs during.mploF.nt .ad posl<mplo)rn.nt bcnclits rcc.iv€d
Pr6idcntirl lss.nt in S.prcmbcr 2020. Thc Codc hs b.ctr publishcd in fic Grzcttc oflndia. Howcld, thc datc d which lhc Code will
com. irro cffc.,t has not b..n norifi.d dd lhc final rul.r^nr.lprclrtion havc nor ),!t b..n issu.d. Thc Compey will as56 th. impact of
rh. cod. rchm it c6.. into .ff.d .nd will .Gconl rny EltLd iBD&t iD th. p..iod lhc Cod. beotncs .rcdivc.

CN u?01 00TN2020PTC I 40019
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